Agenda - Finance Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Committee Room 3 - Senedd Bethan Davies

Meeting date: 21 September 2017 Committee Clerk

Meeting time: 09.35 0300 200 6372

SeneddFinance@assembly.wales

Informal Pre-meeting (9.35-9.45)

2.1

2.2

Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of

interest
09.45

Paper(s) to note
09.45 (Pages 1 - 6)
PTN1- Letter from the Chair of Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee
to Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure - 20 July 2017
(Pages 7 - 12)
PTN2 - Letter from the Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure to
the Chair of Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee - 14 August 2017
(Page 13)
PTN3 - Letter from the Auditor General for Wales to Chair of Finance
Committee - Expenditure on Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act
2015 - 3 August 2017
(Pages 14 - 15)
PTN4 - Letter from Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government -
Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Act 2017 Communities Scheme - 7 August
2017
(Page 16)
PTN5 - Letter from Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government -
Welsh Government First Supplementary Budget 2017-18 - 21 July 2017
(Pages 17 - 20)

,Ff Cynulliad National
/’ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

PTN6 - Letter from Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government -
PPIW report - 23 August 2017

(Pages 21 - 55)
PTN7 - Letter from the Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government -
Welsh Government First Supplementary Budget 2017-18 - 1 September 2017

(Pages 56 - 58)
PTN8 - Letter from the Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children -
Abolition of the Right to Buy and Associated Rights (Wales) Bill - 12
September 2017

(Page 59)

PTN9 - Letter from Suzy Davies AM, Commissioner - Remuneration Board
Determination underspend - 14 September 2017

(Pages 60 - 61)

2.10PTN10 - Letter from the Future Generation Commissioner - Additional

evidence on Cost of Legislation- 21 July 2017
(Pages 62 - 72)

Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Bill

Evidence Session: SNAP Cymru
(9.45-10.15) (Pages 73 - 83)
Denise Inger, Chief Executive Director

Caroline Rawson, Assistant Director

Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Bill:

Ministerial Evidence Session

(10.15-11.15) (Pages 84 - 105)
Alun Davies AM, Minister for Lifelong Learning and Welsh Language

Emma Williams, Senior Responsible Officer

Tania Nicholson, Head of Additional Learning Needs Legislative Programme

Charlie Thomas, Head of Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Transformation

Paper 1 - Letter from the Minster for Lifelong Learning and Welsh Language -

Revised Regulatory Impact Assessment - 8 September 2017



Revised Reqgulatory Impact Assessment

External Pier review

5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the
public from the remainder of the meeting and all of the meeting

on 27 September 2017
(11.15)

6 Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Bill:

Consideration of Evidence
(11.15-11.30)

7 Inquiry into the financial estimates accompanying legislation:

Consideration of draft report
(11.30-12.00)
Paper 2 - Draft report

8 Oversight of the Wales Audit Office: Recruitment of the Auditor

General for Wales
(12.00-12.15) (Pages 106 - 133)

Paper 3 - Proposal paper - Recruitment of the Auditor General for Wales

Lunch (12.15-13.00)

9 Budget Scrutiny: Undertaking Budget Scrutiny and Financial

Oversight; Developing Good Practice and Making a Difference
(13.00-14.45) (Pages 134 - 136)
Paper 4 - Budget Scrutiny: Undertaking Budget Scrutiny and Financial

Oversight; Developing Good Practice and Making a Difference


http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s65686/Revised%20Regulatory%20Impact%20Assessment%20Letter%20from%20the%20Minister%20for%20Lifelong%20Learning%20and%20Welsh%20Langu.pdf
http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s65687/Revised%20Regulatory%20Impact%20Assessment%20Report%20of%20the%20External%20Review%20-%208%20September%202017.pdf

Agenda ltem 2

Concise Minutes - Finance Committee

Meeting Venue: This meeting can be viewed
on Senedd TV at:
http://senedd.tv/en/4228

External Location

Meeting date: Thursday, 13 July 2017

Meeting time: 10.00 - 12.20

David Hughes Community Centre, Beaumaris

Attendance

Category Names

Simon Thomas AM (Chair)
Mike Hedges AM

Assembly Members:
David Rees AM

Nick Ramsay AM

Dilwyn Williams, Gwynedd County Council

Jenny Williams, Director of Social Services, Conwy County

Witnhesses:
Borough Council
Alwyn Jones, Isle of Anglesey County Council
Catherine Hunt (Second Clerk)

Committee Staff: Kath Thomas (Deputy Clerk)

Owen Holzinger (Researcher)

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of interest

1.1 The Chair welcomed Members to the meeting.

,F« Cynulliad National
/ Cenedlaethol  Assembly for
C Wal
ymrt aes Pack Page 1


http://senedd.tv/

1.2 Apologies were received from Eluned Morgan AM, Steffan Lewis AM, and Neil
Hamilton AM.

2 Paper(s) to note

2.1 The papers were noted.

3 Inquiry into the financial estimates accompanying legislation: Evidence
session 8 (Association of Directors of Social Services Cymru (ADSS

Cymru))

3.1 The Committee took evidence from Alwyn Jones, Lead Officer Adult Services, Isle of
Anglesey County Council and Chair of All Wales Heads of Adult Services; and Jenny
Williams, Director of Social Services, Conwy County Borough Council and ADSS Cymru
Vice President.

4 Inquiry into the financial estimates accompanying legislation: Evidence

session 9 (Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE))

4.1 The Committee took evidence from Dilwyn Williams, Chief Executive, Gwynedd
Council.

5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public
from the remainder of the meeting and items 1 - 3 of the meeting on
Wednesday 19 July 2017

5.1 The motion was agreed.

Pack Page 2



6 Welsh Government First Supplementary Budget 2017-18:

Consideration of draft report

6.1 The Committee agreed the report with minor changes.

7 Appointment of the non-executive Members and Chair of the Wales

Audit Office Board: Consideration of draft report

7.1 The Committee agreed the report with minor changes.

Pack Page 3



Concise Minutes - Finance Committee

Meeting Venue:

Committee Room 3 - Senedd

This meeting can be viewed
on Senedd TV at:
http://senedd.tv/en/4165

Meeting date: Wednesday, 19 July 2017

Meeting time: 09.02 - 11.30

Attendance

Category

Names

Assembly Members:

Simon Thomas AM (Chair)
Neil Hamilton AM

Mike Hedges AM

Eluned Morgan AM

David Rees AM

Steffan Lewis AM

Nick Ramsay AM

Witnesses:

Mark Drakeford AM, Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local

Government
Andrew Hobden, Welsh Government

Jonathan Price, Welsh Government

Committee Staff:

Bethan Davies (Clerk)
Catherine Hunt (Second Clerk)
Georgina Owen (Deputy Clerk)
Martin Jennings (Researcher)
Joanne McCarthy (Researcher)

Owen Holzinger (Researcher)

National

,F« Cynulliad
/ Cenedlaethol  Assembly for

Cymru

Wales Pack Page 4



http://senedd.tv/

Gareth Howells (Legal Adviser)

Katie Wyatt (Legal Adviser)

The Committee resolved on 13 July 2017 to exclude the public from items 1-3 of the

meeting.

1 Consideration of the approach to scrutiny of the Welsh Government
draft budget 2018-19

1.1 The Committee agreed its approach to scrutiny of the Welsh Government Draft
Budget for 2018-19.

1.2 The Committee agreed to hold a public consultation on proposals for the draft
budget to steer the Committee’s scrutiny, to be held over the Summer Recess.

2 Consideration of the Draft Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Bill

2.1 The Committee agreed to proceed with the introduction of the Public Services
Ombudsman (Wales) Bill.

3 Oversight of the Wales Audit Office: Appointment of the Auditor

General for Wales

3.1 The Committee considered the appointment process for the next Auditor General
for Wales.

4 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of interest

4.1 The Chair welcomed Members to the meeting.

Pack Page 5



5 Paper(s) to note

5.1 The papers were noted.

6 Inquiry into the financial estimates accompanying legislation: Evidence

session 10 (Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government)

6.1 The Committee took evidence from Mark Drakeford AM, Cabinet Secretary for
Finance and Local Government; Jonathan Price - Chief Economist, Welsh Government;
and Andrew Hobden - Economic Appraisal and Analysis Team, Welsh Government.

7 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public

from the remainder of the meeting

7.1 The motion was agreed.

8 Inquiry into the financial estimates accompanying legislation:

Consideration of key issues

8.1 The Committee considered the evidence received and the key issues arising from
the inquiry.

9 Implementation of the Wales Act 2017: Principal appointed day

9.1 The Committee considered the proposed principal appointed day and agreed to
respond to the Llywydd.

Pack Page 6



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru FIN(5)-21-17 PTN1
Pwyllgor yr Economi, Seilwaith a Sgiliau Ag en d é 1 em 2 . 1
National Assembly for Wales

Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee

Ken Skates AM
Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure

20 July 2017
Dear Cabinet Secretary

Welsh Government’s budget for 2017-18: In-year scrutiny of the 2017-18
economy and infrastructure budget

On 13 July 2017 the Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee questioned you
as part of its in-year scrutiny of the Welsh Government’s draft budget for 2017-
18.

| am writing to draw a number of headline issues to your attention, which we
expect to return to during our scrutiny of the draft budget in the autumn 2017.

Prioritisation and value for money

Following scrutiny of the first Supplementary Budget 2016-17 in July 2016, the
Finance Committee recommended that, in future the Welsh Government should
publish “greater evidence setting out the rationale behind budget allocations such
as the business rate relief scheme for Port Talbot Waterfront Enterprise Zone,
including details of the anticipated economic impact” to enable value for money to
be measured. The Welsh Government accepted this recommendation stating: “we
will publish a narrative which includes an assessment of the best available
evidence which has informed our spending plans at a strategic level”.

During draft budget scrutiny last autumn, you told us that you were considering
“the evidence base for making decisions on budgets”. We discussed this further
during in year financial scrutiny.

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 TNA Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 TNA
f// SeneddESS@cynulliad.cyrmru P‘Sen ddElS@assemblywales
www.cynulliad.cymru/SeneddESS MSE&%aineneddElS
0300 200 6565 0300 200 6565




The Committee agrees that in order for us and the wider public to assess whether
the priorities chosen are reasonable, and whether the anticipated outputs
represent value for the public money, it is vital that greater effort is put into
sharing the thinking and evidence which underpins the government's spending
decisions.

The Committee believes that more needs to be done to meet the Welsh
Government’s commitment to provide detail of the evidence and rationale
underpinning budget allocations, illustrating how you have strengthened your
department’s evidence base for budget decision making.

Although you assured the Committee that full consideration is given within the
Welsh Government to ensure that procedures are robust and Value for Money, the
Committee believes that the evidence base for making decisions on budgets
needs to be made public and explicit, particularly during draft budget /financial
scrutiny.

Business support and finance

The Welsh Government’s current economic strategy ‘Economic Renewal. A New
Direction’ was published in July 2010. The document weighed-up the pros and
cons of providing grants to businesses. The Welsh Government decided that it
needed to “move to an investment culture” and announced in the strategy that in
future “all finance that [the Department for Economy and Transport] provides
directly [would] be repayable”.

Your written evidence gave a breakdown of loan and grant funding paid from the
Welsh Government’s ‘Sectors and Business’ budgets since 2011-12. The evidence
showed us that over the six full financial years since the strategy was published,
2011-12 to 2016-17, only 24 per cent of capital grant and loan funding paid was
repayable. The remaining balance (76 per cent) was non-repayable.

The Committee was pleased to note your intentions to create an environment
which supports the development of skills and that the programme is currently
meeting or exceeding the Welsh Government’s expectations. However, the

Y

Pack Page 8



http://gov.wales/topics/businessandeconomy/welsh-economy/economic-renewal/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/businessandeconomy/welsh-economy/economic-renewal/?lang=en

Committee agreed that it needed more assurances on the progress being made in
grant and loan funding.

The Committee would like more information on the progress made in moving to
an “investment culture” since the publication of ‘Economic Renewal: A New
Direction’, including the rates of funding and timescales for repayable and non-
repayable capital grants and loans. The Committee will explore this further during
budget scrutiny in the autumn 2017.

Road and rail infrastructure schemes: The impact of rising inflation

Following scrutiny of the draft budget in November 2016, we wrote to the Finance
Committee highlighting evidence from the Deputy Permanent Secretary which
stated that the draft budget assumed inflation of 2-3% with forecasts suggesting
that it could be up to 4% by the end of 2017. We raised concerns about the impact
that this could have on major projects such as the M4 relief road and the South
Wales Metro.

The Committee asked you to provide an update on how any changes to future
inflation assumptions are being factored into delivery of Welsh Government
funded road and rail infrastructure projects in 2017-18 and beyond.

In response, you stated that inflation, as measured by the Consumer Prices Index
(CPI), is currently 2.9%, which has been the highest since June 2013, and above
the Bank of England’s 2% target. We are mindful that construction inflation often
runs above CPI.

During in-year budget scrutiny, you told the Committee that inflation would be
factored in to financial planning of major transport projects with budgets being
re-calibrated and approved at key stages of each project. The Committee also
heard that construction contracts will include an allowance to manage changes in
inflation, and that Government’s approach, including Early Contractor Involvement
and use of capped budgets on schemes such as the Metro, help manage this
issue.

fy//F Pack Page 9




The Committee was concerned that, with continued financial uncertainty around
the impact of Brexit and the potential for further exchange rate fluctuations and
increases in inflation, it would be difficult for the Welsh Government to guarantee
that future increases in inflation and further economic instability would not have
an impact on large scale, long-term road and rail infrastructure projects. Given
the scale of these projects, and therefore the potential scale of cost overruns
affecting value for money and affordability, we believe that careful monitoring of
the impact of inflation in the coming years is essential.

Development Bank for Wales

The Welsh Government’s budget for 2017-18 included £45.75 million over four
years for the Development Bank for Wales to improve access to finance for Small
and Medium-Sized Enterprises (SMEs). The Welsh Government is currently
managing the transfer of functions between Finance Wales and the Development
Bank for Wales.

Your paper stated that the Development Bank ‘will address the funding gap for
micro, small and medium-sized business’ which ‘in Wales is estimated at around
£350 million to £500 million per annum’.

During our in-year scrutiny of your budget, we asked you to clarify the extent of
the funding gap that the Development Bank will be seeking to address and
requested further information on whether the bank would be subject to banking
sector resilience requirements, such as maintaining minimum capital and leverage
ratios. You stated that such requirements would not apply to the bank, however
the Committee will continue to seek reassurance that the bank has sustainable
plans to deal with economic shocks where loans may become difficult to retrieve.

The Committee has taken a regular interest in the evolution of Finance Wales, and

intends to return to this subject once the business plan for the Development Bank
is published. We will explore this further during budget scrutiny in Autumn 2017.

Pack Page 10




Funding for the South Wales Metro and commitment to the Valleys
lines infrastructure

In 2014 the then UK Government committed to contribute £125m towards the
cost of Valleys Lines rail electrification. During the Committee’s recent rail
franchise inquiry we heard evidence from the Department for Transport (DfT)
which suggested this funding for the Valleys line electrification depended on the
nature of the Welsh Government proposal for the lines.

When providing evidence to the Committee for its inquiry into rail franchise and
Metro, you outlined three areas where agreement was required from the DfT and
Network Rail to achieve his ambitions for the franchise and Metro.

In scrutinising the in-year budget, regarding the £125m, your written evidence
stated “we have full freedom to optimise the final scope of the scheme following
Green Book guidance so as to achieve best value for money”. Additionally, we
hear that while progress is being made, the same three issues remain to be
agreed with the UK Government and Network Rail, specifically that delivery of this
project is dependent upon:

- the UK Government transferring the [franchise procurement] powers on
time and as agreed,;

- the UK Government and Network Rail agreeing our plans for the Valleys
Lines; and

- the Department for Transport agreeing suitable financial arrangements for
the Valley Lines infrastructure.

You informed the Committee that the target date for launching the tender
competition is 18 August 2017. The Committee is concerned that, should the
Welsh Government not achieve clarity on these outstanding issues by the time the
specification is shared with bidders, it could reduce value for money in the
procurement exercise either through uncertainty leading bidders to include a risk
premium in their bids, or by further delaying a tender exercise originally planned
for July.

% Pack Page 11




The Committee would like to receive regular updates from you on the progress
being made on reaching agreement on the outstanding issues for agreement, and
the development of the rail franchise and Valleys line infrastructure.

Our discussion raised a number of other specific issues, which we will raise and
monitor with the relevant Ministers in our regular scrutiny throughout the year.

Yours sincerely

urr(// ﬂﬂ’y

Russell George AM
Chair
Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee

cc. Simon Thomas AM, Chair of the Finance Committee

Pack Page 12




Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee

FIN(5)-01-17 PTN2 Ag @
Ken Skates AC/AM . fi
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros yr Economi a’r Seilwaith '\/

Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure j}

Llywodraeth Cymru

Eich cyf/Your ref Welsh Government
Ein cyf/Our ref

Russell George AM

Chair

Economy, Infrastructure &
Skills Committee

SeneddEIS@assembly.wales

14 August 2017

Dear Russell

Thank you for your letter of 20" July and for your Committee's interest in the Economy and
Infrastructure’s in year (2017/18) budget position.

In terms of your comments regarding the rail franchise, as you may already be aware, the
intention to issue the tender documentation in August has been deferred to late September
following delay by the Department for Transport. However, as requested, | will update the
Committee in due course on the progress for developing the rail franchise, the Metro and
the Valleys Lines infrastructure.

I will be considering the other important points you have raised in the presentation of the
2018-19 Draft Budget in the autumn

Yours sincerely

Ken Skates AC/AM
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros yr Economi a’r Seilwaith
Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure

Bae Caerdydd - Cardiff Bay Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:
Caerdydd « Cardiff 0300 0604400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Ken.Skates@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any correspondence eceived in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding. [( age 3


mailto:Correspondence.Ken.Skates@gov.wales
mailto:Correspondence.Ken.Skates@gov.wales

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee

Agenda el 2’3 Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru
Auditor General for Wales

24 Cathedral Road / 24 Heol y Gadeirlan

Cardiff / Caerdydd

CF119LJ

Mr Simon Thomas AM Tel / Ffon: 029 2032 0500
Chair of the Finance Commitiee Fax / Ffacs: 029 2032 0600
National Assembly for Wales Textphone / Ffon testun: 029 2032 0660
Cardiff Bay info@audit.wales / post{@archwilio.cymru
Cardiff CF99 1NA www.audit.wales / www.archwilio.cymru

Reference: HVT/2737/caf
Date issued: 3 August 2017

Aol S

Expenditure on Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
related work in 2016-17

During the Finance Committee's meeting on 7" June, my colleague Matthew Mortlock
offered to provide further detail about our expenditure on Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 related work in 2016-17.

We spent a total of £241,748 on discrete activities relating to the work that we are
undertaking to develop our approach to discharging the Auditor General's duties under
the Act. This sum is made up of:

) Staff time (in accordance with the Fee Scheme) - £226,743

. Costs associated with the conference that we held jointly with the Future
Generations Commissioner in November 2016 - £15,005 incl VAT

This expenditure compared to estimated costs of £422,000, as set out in our 2016-17
estimate and considered by the Finance Committee in the fourth Assembly. The key
reason for the underspend, and as | commented on in my evidence to the Committee in
November 20186, is that we intentionally took steps to support the new Commissioner by
agreeing arrangements for our lead manager, with considerable knowledge of sustainable
development, to move to the Commissioner’s office. This had the inevitable knock-on
impact of a time lag in finding a suitably experienced project manager to take over,
resulting in an underspend on salary and on-costs plus delivery costs that would have
otherwise been incurred, and which we planned at the time we put together the Estimate.

To put these figures in the context of our overall financial position, we reported an
underspend of £192,000 plus £28,000 capital in 20186-17. However, because of non-cash
adjustments we recently returned £495,000 fo the Welsh Consolidated Fund.

Page 1 of 2 - Expenditure on Well-being of Future Generations (Wales}) Act 2015 related wark in 2016-17 -
please contact us in Welsh or EnghR a@kjlﬁ)\o@ggn%ymraeg neu'n Saesneg.



I hope that this information is helpful to the Committee in advance of any further scrutiny
of our 2016-17 Annual Report and Accounts.

\Z I

HUW VAUGHAN THOMAS
AUDITOR GENERAL FOR WALES

Page 2 of 2 - Expenditure on Weli-being of Future Generations (Wales) Acl 2015 related work in 2016-17 -

Please contact us in Welsh or English / Cysy’ﬁ\écelé %@@ﬁ.@ neu'n Saesneg.



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee 5‘ -
IN(S)- R4l =] 2 PTy4 = r -
AgeritiaHeltd i s
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a Llywodraeth Leol ’
Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government - Jé)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Simon Thomas AM

Chair

Finance Committee

National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

KD@\JSL/MW\I “F August 2017

Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Bill, Communities Scheme

I write to confirm the timetable for the procurement of a distributive body to administer the
Landfill Disposals Tax Communities Scheme and the actions being taken to inform
interested parties.

On 29 May, the Prior Information Notice (PIN) was published (copy attached), which is the
first step in the procurement process and seeks to alert those interested to the forthcoming
procurement.

| previously advised that | anticipated the tender exercise would launch in July, however,
following further consideration of the timetable | can confirm it is my intention to publish the
tender in September thus avoiding the summer period. | believe this will be welcomed by
interested parties and it will further enable officials to continue to collaborate with colleagues
within communities and environment to develop the tender documentation.

Officials have contacted those who received the PIN to confirm the timetable, and have
spoken directly to interested stakeholders to ensure that they are aware. It remains my
intention to appoint the distributive body later this year.

As per my letter to you of 5 June, | would be happy for officials to provide the Committee
with a briefing session on the development of the scheme.

Yours sincerely

N~

Mark Drakeford AM/AC

Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a Llywodraeth Leol
Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:

Bae Caerdydd » Cardiff Bay 0300 0604400
Caerdydd » Cardiff Gohebiaeth.Mark.Drakeford@llyw.cymru
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Mark.Drakeforc@&/.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in WeB\a@rk Brag&dlr@e received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.



Prior information notice

This notice is for prior information only

Directive 2014/24/EU - Public Sector Directive

Section I: Contracting authority

1.1) Name and addresses

Welsh Government

Corporate Procurement Services, Cathays Park
Cardiff

CF10 3NQ

UK

Telephone: +44 3000628864

E-mail: CPSProcurementAdvice@wales.gsi.gov.uk
NUTS: UKL

Internet address(es)

Main address: http://wales.gov.uk/?skip=1&lang=en

Address of the buyer profile: http://www.sell2wales.gov.wales/search/Search AuthProfile.aspx?2ID=AA0007

1.2) Joint procurement

The contract is awarded by a central purchasing body

1.3) Communication

Additional information can be obtained from the abovementioned address

L.4) Type of the contracting authority

Ministry or any other national or federal authority, including their regional or local subdivisions
L5) Main activity

General public services

Section II: Object

I1.1) Scope of the procurement
I1.1.1) Title

Distributive body for the Landfill Disposals Tax Communities Scheme Wales
Pack Page 17



Reference number: C075/2017/18
I1.1.2) Main CPV code
75100000

I1.1.3) Type of contract

Services

11.1.4) Short description

The Landfill Disposals Tax (LDT) Communities Scheme will replace the Landfill Communities Fund in
Wales when Landfill Tax is devolved to Wales from April 2018 . A distributive body will administer the grant
scheme on behalf of the Welsh Government.

I1.1.5) Estimated total value

Value excluding VAT: 600 000.00 GBP
11.1.6) Information about lots

This contract is divided into lots: No
I1.2) Description

11.2.2) Additional CPV code(s)
75100000

75112000

75131000

79000000

66170000

I1.2.3) Place of performance

NUTS code:

UKL

IL.2.4) Description of the procurement

The Landfill Disposals Tax (LDT) Communities Scheme will replace the Landfill Communities Fund in
Wales when Landfill Tax is devolved to Wales from April 2018 . A distributive body will administer the grant
scheme on behalf of the Welsh Government. The scheme will support local community and environmental
projects in areas affected by the disposal of waste to landfill. Information on the scheme’s general principles,
geographical coverage and the types of projects that will be supported are available on the Welsh
Government’s website http:/gov.wales/docs/caecd/publications/161213-ldt-update-en.pdf. This notice seeks
to alert the marketplace to the forthcoming procurement to appoint a distributive body to administer the
scheme. The distributive body will distribute in the region of GBP1.4m of grants per annum to local
community and environmental projects. This contract is for the administration of the scheme and the contract
value is expected to be GBP100,000 per annum. These proposals are dependant upon the final block grant

adjustment about LDT which will not be concluded until after the UK Autumn Budget. The distributive body
Pack Page 18




will provide applicants with a single point of contact as well as providing guidance and support to applicants.
Although the distributive body will administer the scheme, the Welsh Government will set the aims and
principles of the scheme. As part of its governance procedures Welsh Government will seek assurances from
the distributive body that funds are distributed in line with the aims and principles. The distributive body will
be responsible for publishing an annual report on the scheme outlining how the money is being allocated and
the outcomes delivered. As part of this the distributive body will be expected to ensure that an evaluation
framework is built into the scheme from the outset. The proposed approach outlined in this notice could be
subject to change and we reserve the right to make any changes to satisfy our requirements

I1.3) Estimated date of publication of contract notice:

24/07/2017

Section I'V: Procedure

IV.1) Description
IV.1.8) Information about Government Procurement Agreement (GPA)

The procurement is covered by the Government Procurement Agreement: Yes

Section VI: Complementary information

VI.3) Additional information

NOTE: To register your interest in this notice and obtain any additional information please visit the
Sell2Wales Web Site at http://www.sellZwales.,czov.wa]es/Search/Search_SWitch.asDX?ID=66740.

(WA Ref:66740)

VL5) Date of dispatch of this notice

25/05/2017

Pack Page 19



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee

FIN(5)-21-17 PTN5 7

Agen

Mark Drakeford AM/AC

Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a Llywodraeth Leol )\J[o \54)

Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref
Ein cyf/Our ref: MA-P/MD/2607/17

Simon Thomas AM,
Chair Finance Committee,
The National Assembly for Wales,
Cardiff Bay,
Cardiff
CF99 1NA
21 July 2017

Dear Simon,

At the Committee session on the First Supplementary Budget | promised to provide
further information on two issues raised by Members.

As | outlined at the Committee, this budget allocated £20 million of our revenue
reserves to support Social Services, with £8 million being added to the budget of
Social Care Wales. The Supplementary Budget also contains a number of transfers
within the MEG and between the various Social Services Actions. Following a review
of budgets, and as a number of budget lines were not fully committed, balances were
transferred within the Health budget. An additional £1 million was transferred within
Social Services to further increase the Social Care Wales Action; and £2 million
transferred to the Delivery of Targeted NHS Services Action.

| am attaching a separate note of the main classification issues we considered when

developing the Mutual Invest Model.
| hope you and the Committee finds these details useful.

Yours sincerely

Mark Drakeford AM/AC
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a Llywodraeth Leol
Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government

Bae Caerdydd . Cardiff Bay Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:
Caerdydd « Cardiff 0300 0604400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd

gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any coPe%%eR@ag@ivlen Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding

in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.


mailto:Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford@gov.wales

Mutual Investment Model (MIM)

The NPD model

1.

When the previous Welsh Government decided to use a PPP model to finance
investment in the Velindre cancer centre, completing dualling of the A465 and in the
next phase of the 21t century schools programme, the intention had been to use
the Non-profit Distributing (NPD) model developed in Scotland. The NPD model
sought to alleviate concerns about the private financing of public infrastructure
through both the exercise of public control over the private partner (Project Co), and
the capping of earnings on equity invested in Project Co.

However, the control and profit capping provisions of NPD proved not to be viable
following a series of classification decisions taken by statisticians at the Office of
National Statistics (ONS), backed by Eurostat.

How PPPs are classified is a consequence of decisions taken by the ONS based on
the relevant EU legislation: the European System of Accounts 2010 (ESA2010).
Where a PPP is classified to the private sector, its debt does not impact on the
budget of the public sector authority with which it is contracting. However, where a
PPP is classified to the public sector under these rules, its debt is considered on
balance sheet for the relevant public authority and as such, under the UK’s
budgeting rules?, the full value of the scheme scores against the Government's
capital budget.

In July 2015, the ONS classified an NPD scheme — the Aberdeen Western
Peripheral Route (AWPR) scheme — to the public sector. Other NPD schemes
followed, with the result that the Scottish Government has had to provide around £1
billion of capital budget cover for these schemes. The ONS decision found that the
controls exercised by the Scottish Government were such that the ostensibly private
partner delivering the scheme must, for budgetary purposes, be considered public,
with its debt scoring against the Government’s capital budget. The analysis also
found that the capping of equity earnings too was an exercise of government control
over the private partner, incompatible with a private sector classification.

The reasoning behind these decisions was codified in March 2016 with the
publication of the revised Manual on Government Deficit and Debt (MGDD) — the
ESA2010 guidance document published by Eurostat, which now rules out explicitly
a number of the control provisions that had featured prominently in NPD?2.

Bearing these developments in mind, the Welsh Government has developed a new
model — the Mutual Investment Model (MIM) — which is intended to maximise
benefits to the public sector while ensuring the private sector classification of MIM
schemes. To achieve this, a number of significant revisions were made to the NPD
model, while seeking to retain the core elements of NPD, such as risk transfer and
availability payments, which promote the public good and are not problematic from
a classification perspective.

1See, for example, Chapter 13 of the UK Consolidated budgeting guidance 2017 to 2018.
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/601846/consolidated_budgetin
g_guidance_2017-2018.pdf
2http://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/documents/3859598/7203647/KS-GQ-16-001-EN-N.pdf/5cfae6dd-29d8-4487-
80ac-37f76cd1f012

Pack Page 18



Public Interest Directors — exercising influence (but not control)

7.

The NPD model foresaw a Public Interest Director (PID) appointed by the
Government (but not employed by the Government) on the board of PPP Project
Companies (Project Co). The PID was entrusted with veto powers exercised
through a golden share.

In the MIM, the public sector will retain the right to appoint a PID. While the PID, will
not exercise veto powers over the operational decisions of Project Co (which would
lead to public classification of the PPP), he or she will be empowered through
unrestricted access to information, secured through transparency obligations.

The Capital Structure — sharing (but not capping) profits

9.

NPD deals did not include dividend-bearing equity. Equity was replaced with fixed
priced debt — hence the model's being known as non-profit distributing. Any
earnings above the fixed price cap — for example, arising from efficiencies in
operation of the asset (such as lower than forecast maintenance costs or
refinancing gains) — were expected to return to the public sector in the form of
surpluses.

10.In the MIM, equity will play a role in the overall financing, given that the NPD capital

structure described above results in public sector classification. However, the public
sector will be able to exercise an option to share in the earnings of a PPP by taking
up to 20 percent of this equity. This would create a flow of dividends back to the
public sector, in place of surpluses.

ONS and Eurostat consideration of the MIM

11.Development of the MIM was informed by ongoing classification discussions

(around MGDD 2016) in the European Investment Bank-Eurostat working group, in
which Welsh Government officials were heavily involved. Content, in light of these
discussions, that the MIM met the requirements of MGDD 2016 for private sector
classification, the Welsh Government made a request to the ONS for an indicative
classification decision in October 2016. In so doing, the Welsh Government
provided the ONS with standard form contracts for roads and accommodation
projects (each around 500 pages in length), a standardised shareholders’
agreement, and a MIM user guide. This suite of documents was subsequently
presented to the ONS before the latter’s deliberations began in earnest.

12.A response from the ONS, confirming that the MIM would in principle provide for

private sector classification, was received in December 2016. However, it is
important to bear in mind the ONS will have an interest in the classification of
specific MIM schemes, as the standardised MIM documents are customised for
specific projects. Particular care will be needed at this time to ensure that changes
are not made that inadvertently give rise to classification concerns. In addition,
Eurostat will continue to monitor the development of innovative models such as the
MIM.

Pack Page 19



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee

FIN(5)-21-17 PTN6 Aden 7
Mark Drakeford AM/AC g )\ 7
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a Llywodraeth Leol -
Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government - [ JQ

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Simon Thomas AM

Chair

Finance Committee

National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

23 August 2017
Dear Simon

When | gave evidence to the Finance Committee last year about the 2017-18 draft Budget,
we discussed participatory budgeting and the respective steps the Welsh Government and
the committee are taking to engage people and communities in the difficult financial choices
and decisions Wales faces.

| confirmed that the Welsh Government had agreed to undertake a participatory budget pilot
as part of this year’s Budget.

To help inform our thinking, the Public Policy Institute for Wales (PPIW) undertook a rapid
review of UK and international approaches to participatory budgeting. PPIW will publish its
report, Participatory Budgeting: A Rapid Evidence Review later today. | am pleased to
enclose a copy in advance of publication. It will be available from the following link from
10am today:

http://ppiw.org.uk/publications/

During your Plenary statement, Fiscal Reform: Lessons from Scotland, you referred to the
Scottish Government’s approach to participatory budgeting. My officials have engaged with
What Works Scotland and the Scottish Government to learn from this approach. The PPIW
report and our understanding of what has worked in Scotland is helping to inform our
approach to a participatory budgeting pilot for Wales.

As part of the steps we are taking to embed the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act into

this year’s Budget process, | have discussed participatory budgeting with the Future
Generations Commissioner. She has welcomed the pilot.

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay 0300 0604400
Caerdydd . Cardiff Gohebiaeth.Mark.Drakeford@llyw.cymru
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any coﬁ')eébgrheﬁgag@ivgd]én Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Mark.Drakeford@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford@gov.wales
http://ppiw.org.uk/publications/

| am keen to work with the Finance Committee to learn from your experiences of
participatory budgeting — during your Plenary statement, you referred to the Finance
Committee’s recent stakeholder event in Beaumaris and a participatory budgeting event in
Bassaleg School.

| would appreciate the opportunity to discuss this in more detail with you. | will ask my office
to contact yours to arrange a meeting in September.

Yours sincerely

,’( 4 Tl é\é)

Mark Drakeford AM/AC
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a LIywodraeth Leol
Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government

Pack Page 22



& Public Policy Institute for Wales
ﬁ Sefydliad Polisi Cyhoeddus i Gymru

Participatory Budgeting: A Rapid Evidence Review

August 2017

Pack Page 23



Participatory Budgeting:
A Rapid Evidence Review

Emyr Williams, Emily St. Denny and Dan Bristow

Public Policy Institute for Wales

This report and the information contained within it are the copyright of the Queen’s Printer
and Controller of HMSO, and are licensed under the terms of the Open Government Licence
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3.  The  views
expressed are the author’s and do not necessarily reflect those of members of the Institute’s

Executive Group or Board of Governors.

For further information please contact:

Emyr Williams

Public Policy Institute for Wales
Tel: 029 2087 5345

Email: info@ppiw.org.uk

Pack Page 24


http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3
mailto:info@ppiw.org.uk

Contents

ST U ] 010 0= 1Y PP PP 1
[0 [ ox i o] o PP PPPPPPPPPPP 2
Defining Participatory BUAGELING ........ccvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee ettt 2
The Potential Benefits of Different APProaches............oooviiiiiiiii e, 6
A Framework for Developing Participatory BUdgeting ........ccccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeieee e, 12
The Challenges for Effective Implementation ..o 16
Implications for the Welsh Government Budget ProCess...........ooovviiiiiiiiieiciiiiiiiie e, 18
RETEIEBNCES ...ttt e et e e e e e e r e e e e e e e e 21
Appendix A: Examples of the use of Participatory Budgeting ............ccovvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnn, 24
Appendix B: The Role of Digital TEChNOIOY ..........ccoovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee 28

Pack Page 25



Summary

The term Participatory Budgeting (PB) has been used to describe a broad range
of activities that have been designed to achieve different aims, and implemented in
very different contexts. Common to these is the involvement of a local population in
decision making regarding the distribution of public funds; although the level and
method of involvement runs from full delegation of decision making, to light touch

consultation.

The range of potential benefits depends, for the most part, on the scale and nature of the
participation and, by extension, the aim of the process. In Porto Alegre, the birthplace of
PB, the process has fundamentally changed the relationship between citizen and state,
improved the functioning of government and led to improved public services and

infrastructure.

To date, the use of PB in Wales and the rest of the UK has been more modest and the
impact has, as a result, been smaller. Although the available evidence suggests that well
implemented PB can lead to improvements in citizen engagement, intergenerational
understanding, levels of self-confidence among participants, and in perceptions of public

service providers.

In developing a PB process, the key question is: what are the public being asked to do
and why? Clearly articulating the aim of PB, and deciding on the level of desired
participation helps to inform subsequent decisions on the scale and scope of the

exercise; who should be involved; and the process and methods to be pursued.

Careful consideration also needs to be given both to the resourcing (i.e. who plays what
role and what does this mean for the resourcing of the process), and to the connections
with the wider landscape (i.e. how might PB interact with other processes of engagement

or participation?).

The literature emphasises the need to invest time and resources in developing PB
processes; particularly for those forms of PB which are based on greater levels of public
participation. Depending on the aspirations for the use of PB techniques in the national
budget process in Wales, this suggests that the focus in the short term might usefully be
on laying the foundations for future budgets (addressing questions of aim, scope, scale
etc.). This could be pursued alongside the use of other forms of engagement or

consultation that signal an intended direction of travel.

-
P

anl

Pack Page 26 1



Introduction

In times of austerity, reduced public sector budgets and mounting demand for public
services, budget decisions by public bodies are becoming increasingly difficult and have
significant implications for the public. At the same time public trust in politics is seen to be
decreasing (Park et al 2013) and public engagement in the political process is limited.
Advocates of participatory budgeting argue that it has the potential to address a humber of

these issues, at least in part.

The Welsh Government is interested in potential benefits of participatory budgeting
techniques, and their applicability to the national budgeting process. The Cabinet Secretary
for Finance and Local Government asked the PPIW to provide a framework to consider how
participatory budgeting techniques might be used for the national budget in Wales. This
paper summarises the existing evidence in relation to participatory budgeting and outlines
the main issues that need to be considered when looking to implement participatory
budgeting techniques.

Defining Participatory Budgeting

Participatory budgeting (PB) has been used to describe a diverse range of activities, but
there is a general consensus that it broadly refers to the process of involving citizens in
decision making regarding the distribution of public funds (Herzberg et al 2008; Harkins and
Escobar 2016). Using this most basic interpretation of PB, it has been described as a

process which:

“directly involves local people in making decisions on the spending priorities for a
defined public budget. This means engaging residents and community groups
representative of all parts of the community to discuss spending priorities, make
spending proposals and vote on them, as well as giving local people a role in
the scrutiny and monitoring of the process!.” (Department for Communities and
Local Government (DCLG), 2011 p.5)

The definition makes explicit reference to ‘local’ people being involved in PB. This is

because almost every PB process has involved people at a local or municipal level with the

1 The way that PB is scrutinised and monitored varies, but in general there is some form of feedback
mechanism to those who made the original decisions, providing information on how the projects are

progressing; whether that be through project websites, newsletters, a PB forum or community representatives.

-
san
anl

Pack Page 27 2



aim of increasing local engagement in the political process. There is currently no evidence of
PB being undertaken at national government level. Portugal has just begun to undertake a
national PB process but there is currently no evidence as to how successful this process has

been.

The different levels of participation

This definition is helpful in identifying PB as one form of public participation. Public
participation, broadly speaking, refers to any forms of “involvement of the public in the affairs
and decisions of policy-setting bodies” (Rowe and Frewer 2005 p. 251). Citizen participation
is widely considered to take place along a spectrum or continuum. There are a range of
conceptual models to illustrate this; one is presented in figure 1 and lends itself well to the

purpose of this rapid review.

Figure 1 — IAP2’s Public Participation Spectrum

INCREASING IMPACT ON THE DECISION

INFORM CONSULT
3 To provide the public To obtain public
g with balanced and feedback on analysis,
3l objective information alternatives and/or
l‘:__’ to assist them in decisions.
s understanding the
7] problem, alternatives,
E opportunities and/or
-l solutions.
Q
-l
o
)
[
We will keep you We will keep you
informed. informed, listen to

and acknowledge
concems and
aspirations, and
provide feedback
on how public
input influenced the
decision.

2
wd
m
2
o
w
X
=
[=]
-
w
8
H
o
(4
o

© 1AP2 International Federation 2014. All rights resarved.

International Association of Public Participation — Public Participation Spectrum - Retrieved from -
http://lwww.iap2.org/?page=A5

Public Policy Institute for Wales PaCk Page 28 3

| ~ - . PP
4 Sefydliad Polisi CyhoeddusiGymru


http://www.iap2.org/?page=A5

One end of the spectrum features passive participation based on punctual
information sharing. Here organisations simply seek to raise the public’'s awareness of
an issue. The exchange of information is top-down and transactional, with organisations
communicating information and the public passively receiving it (Rowe and Frewer 2005
p.255). By contrast, at the other end of the spectrum, public engagement is ongoing,
community-led, and involves some degree of community ownership or control of the process
and outcomes. This type of engagement is often empowering and, therefore, characterised
as ‘transformational’ within the literature. In these cases, information is not merely
exchanged between stakeholders and representatives of organisations, but opinion and
views can be transformed as a result of dialogue and negotiation (Rowe and Frewer 2005
p.256).

Public consultation exists somewhere between these two extremes. Consultation is intended
to elicit information from stakeholders representing their current views and opinions on
an issue in question. It can therefore happen more or less regularly, place more or less
weight on citizen’'s inputs, and delegate more or less power to communities in
controlling the process (Head 2007 p.442). Here, the process is neither fully determined
by the sponsor organisation from the top-down, nor is it fully community owned from the
bottom-up. This type of public participation is therefore transitional, theoretically allowing
both the sponsor organisation and the public to share in the process and any resulting
benefits (Bowen et al, 2010). Information is divulged by stakeholders after a process of
consultation is initiated by a sponsor organisation (Rowe and Frewer 2005 p.255). Control
over how the public’s input is used nevertheless tends to remain with the sponsor

organisation.

Participatory budgeting and other forms of participation

The participation spectrum outlined above can be a helpful way to think about the
desired level of participation sought through the PB process. However it is important to
note that literature surrounding PB stresses that purely informing the public cannot
qualify as a PB process as the public do not have a say in how resources are allocated.
Of course, this is not to say that providing information on the budget-setting process and
spending priorities has no intrinsic value; but rather that it is not generally considered to be
PB.

To qualify as PB, a process must include (at its most basic) a pot of funds to be distributed,;
citizen or representative participation in deciding how those funds are spent; and
project implementation based on the views of the voting public. It is for this reason that

budget calculators hardly figure in any of the literature on PB as they do not meet

4
4

P

1

Pack Page 29 4



these three criteria. There are some examples of budget calculators that have been
designed to enable effective feedback and monitoring, making them more consultative, but
there has been no evaluation of these as a PB process and they are otherwise not

widely discussed in the literature on PB. (Sintomer et al 2013).

More fundamentally, PB is only one form of participation, and as such, PB techniques,
and research on the same, are part of a wider agenda related to deliberative democracy
and democratic innovations more broadly. This field encompasses a variety of
participatory devices such as consensus conferences, deliberative polls and citizen juries
(Herzberg et al 2008). Whilst these deliberative methods can be adapted for use in various
PB processes?, they are not directly discussed in the literature and evidence around PB
specifically. For this reason, they have not been included in this study. However, Escobar
and Elstub (2016) have written a paper which provides a breakdown of the different
ways that ‘mini publics’ (for example citizens juries and consensus conferences) can

be used to help improve participation and deliberation.

The different types of participatory budgeting

As the discussion above suggests, PB can take many different forms, and be used
to achieve different aims, depending on the degree of involvement of, and power delegated
to, participants. However, this is not the only way in which approaches can vary and,
despite sharing a common name, numerous different types of PB can be identified.
Consequently, a number of typologies have been developed to try and classify different
practices (see for example, Goldfrank, 2007, DLCG, 2011, Harkins & Escobar, 2015,

and Allegretti et al, 2013); across these some common dimensions of variability emerge:

- Level of participation: what involvement means in terms of degree of control (e.g.

inputting views versus making the decisions) and whether PB is used as a tool for
empowering participants or as a consultation mechanism with little change in power

dynamics and influence.

- Who is involved: whether those who participate are, for example, citizens,

representative groups, NGOs, or private companies.

- At what stage are participants involved: broadly, there are four stages, all of which

could involve participants: identifying needs, developing project proposals, selecting

projects to be funded, monitoring effects.

2 Such as the use of citizens juries to allocate a PB in Darebin https://newdemocracy.com.au/ndf-work/182-

darebin-participatory-budgeting-citizens-jury

-
P
anl

Pack Page 30 5


https://newdemocracy.com.au/ndf-work/182-darebin-participatory-budgeting-citizens-jury
https://newdemocracy.com.au/ndf-work/182-darebin-participatory-budgeting-citizens-jury

- What is the method of involvement: there are a wide range of possible approaches,

but there are two broad categories — ‘deliberative’, which involves some form of
debate among participants; or ‘aggregative’, where participants vote for their
preferred outcome. Often PB can involve both deliberative and aggregative

approaches.

- Scale of approach: PB has been done at different geographical scales (e.g. national,

local, neighborhood); with different types and scale of budget (e.g. small scale grant
allocation, or setting priorities for, in some cases multi-million pound, mainstream
budgets) and with different foci (e.g. making choices within a policy or thematic area,
such as health, or across themes but within a geographical area).

- Whether and to what extent PB is redistributive: PB has been used to redistribute

wealth by allocating more resources to the poorest areas.

Of course, these interact and overlap with each other. For example, the scale of the
approach taken has implications for the method of involvement and who is involved, and
visa versa. The key lesson to be drawn from this plurality of ways of defining and classifying
PB is that, while the concept may initially appear clear and easy to grasp, there exist
multiple, and at times competing, visions of what PB means and how and why it ought to be
implemented. It is therefore very important to clarify what is trying to be achieved through

the process before implementing PB at any level.

The Potential Benefits of Different Approaches

The diversity of approaches to PB means that the potential benefits are equally wide
ranging. Fundamentally, it is the level of participation that determines the potential impact of
well implemented PB approaches. Where PB uses less involved forms of participation, it can
help to inform and educate participants, increase confidence in the public sector and

increase local engagement.

Where PB is used as a means of empowering citizens in making decisions, advocates point
to a range of potential benefits. Indeed, the World Bank emphasises the democratic and

transformational nature of PB highlighting that it:

“represents a direct-democracy approach to budgeting. It offers citizens at large an
opportunity to learn about government operations and to deliberate, debate, and
influence the allocation of public resources. It is a tool for educating, engaging and

empowering citizens and strengthening demand for good governance. The enhanced

-
P
anl

Pack Page 31 6



transparency and accountability that participatory budgeting creates can help reduce
government inefficiency and curb clientelism, patronage, and corruption”. (World Bank
2007 p.1)

As this suggests, PB can be used to achieve a much wider set of aims than simply involving
the public in financial decision making. Such an approach usually stems from the desire to
achieve wider social goals, and often involves new ways of working for all aspects of
government. Moreover it is argued that, in so doing, PB has the potential to drive people-
powered public services and support innovation and transformation in all areas, but

especially those with the most limited resources (Bowers and Blunt 2016).

The evidence supporting these claims, however, is under-developed. While there have been
a number of evaluations of individual PB projects, particularly in South America, there is a
lack of evidence relating to the impact of PB in general. This is, at least in part, a
consequence of the different ways it is implemented, and to the variety of aims it is intended
to achieve. This means that PB can be very difficult to evaluate, particularly if there was no
original baseline data. That said, evaluations of PB conducted in a number of locations
demonstrate the positive impact on citizens' perception of the accountability of the public
administration as well as the improvement of good administrative behaviour (Sgueo 2016).
There is less evidence to support claims that PB leads to improvements in services, or that
engagement and involvement in PB processes can have positive outcomes on overall well-
being® (Boudling and Wampler 2009).

Finally, PB is an area where it is unlikely that the benefits of an approach in a particular
context will be readily transferred to another context. The level of participation and
engagement that the public are used to will mean different places begin from different
starting points which will lead to different outcomes. Furthermore, the way in which PB is

implemented can also have a dramatic impact on its outcomes.

This section presents notable examples of different approaches to PB that have been trialled
across the world, which can be seen as representing the two ends of the scale of potential
benefits. It starts with a discussion of the original model transformative processes of PB in
Porte Alegre which was intended to redistribute wealth. This is followed by a description of
the experience in the UK, where approaches have tended to be less redistributive
programmes intended to engage citizens in a public consultation over where and how sums

of money ought to be spent.

3 There is evidence to show that wellbeing is linked to civic engagement, and feelings of influence over decisions

that affect one’s life. Why this is not replicated across evaluations of PB is unclear.

-
P
anl

Pack Page 32 !



Redistributive Participatory Budgeting: The Example of Porto Alegre
(Brazil)

The original PB experiment took place in Porto Alegre at the end of the 1980s (DCLG 2011,
Sintomer et al 2013, Herzberg et al 2011, Sgueo 2016), and it is here that the most
transformative impact was made as a result of PB. In the 1980’s, the City of Porto Alegre
had a significant gap between the rich and poor and suffered from corruption at all levels of
decision making. However, the election of the Labour Party (Partido dos Trabalhadores) in
1988 brought with it significant change in the way the area was governed. Citizen
participation and decision making were seen as key in changing the fortunes of the city by
placing social justice at its heart. Over subsequent years PB was introduced to allocate
funds throughout the city, with a particular view to redistributing wealth and improving
transparency of decision making to help avoid corruption. The most deprived areas were
given more resources, and decisions over the allocation of new capital investments such as

schools, roads, sanitation and healthcare were all made through PB.

The Porto Alegre PB process had three primary aims: to achieve social change with
redistribution of wealth; to increase social justice in an area that had significant wealth gap;
and to reinstate confidence in the political process. A number of robust qualitative and
guantitative studies have shown that the process yielded positive results, with greater
equality and increased trust in the political process. Specifically, between 1989 and 2001,

the new system achieved (Sintomer et al 2013):

redistribution of public investment to poorer areas;
e improving services and infrastructure based on the citizens’ proposals;
e improving governance cooperation between individual administrative departments;

e a speed-up of internal administrative operations and greater responsiveness on the
part of public administration; and
e improved citizen participation.
It is for these reasons that Porto Alegre is cited as an example of best practice regarding

urban policy making by both the World Bank and UN-Habitat (UNDP, 2001).

In keeping with the broader literature on PB (e.g. Abers, 2000; Baiocchi, 2005; Gret
and Sintomer, 2005), Herzberg et al (2008 p.167) highlight three principles which enabled
Porto Alegre to succeed:

1. Grassroots democracy - Citizen assemblies were set up in 16 districts of the city

to determine priorities for those areas and elect delegates whose role was to ensure

-
P
anl

Pack Page 33 8



these priorities were delivered. These priorities were decided on the basis of one
vote per person so that each participant could participate equally in the decision

making.

2. Social Justice — An allocation formula for funding was created which considered the
number of residents, the infrastructure available and the citizens’ priorities. This
meant that those areas which were less well-off received more than areas with a

better quality of life. This helped to guarantee redistributive outcomes.

3. Citizen-led — Boards such as the Council of the Participatory Budget were set up with
representatives from each of the district assemblies. These boards ensure that as

many of the districts’ priorities as possible are accommodated within the budget.

Using these principles to structure and deliver the PB process allowed citizens to have a real
impact on decision making and there were significant societal changes in the city, as well as
redistribution of resources focused on the poorest areas. However, experts stress that these
achievements were down, on the one hand, to a strong political will and, on the other, to the
bottom-up mobilization of the people of Porto Alegre. Studies of other attempts at PB which
were introduced as a top-down initiative have been found to have less pronounced positive
impacts as the participation infrastructure was not as developed and political will not as

strong as in Porte Alegre (Herzberg et al 2008).

Consultative Participatory Budgeting: Experiences in the UK

PB in Europe has always differed from that of Latin America. Because water, sanitation and
public services were further developed and corruption less widespread, regions tended to
focus on PB as a means of public engagement and project implementation rather than
resource redistribution and mainstream budget allocation. As a result of this, the
benefits of the different systems that have been implemented in Europe are much

more varied and less redistributory in nature.

In the UK, PB has been primarily based on smaller grant allocation schemes, in contrast to
the mainstream budgets used in many Brazilian models. When Rocke undertook an
evaluation of the interventions in the UK to date the key finding was “concrete results,
but limited impact” (in Harkins and Escobar, 2015 p.7), with a small positive impact on a

range of outcomes for participants, including:
e Improved self-confidence of individuals and organisations;

e Improved intergenerational understanding;

-
P
anl

Pack Page 34 9



e Greater local involvement with increased volunteering and the formation of new

groups;
¢ Improved citizen awareness of councillors in their wards;

¢ Increased confidence of citizens in local service providers; and

¢ Increased resident control over the allocation of some resources.

PB in England was also found to be able to attract additional funds to deprived areas by
providing an effective methodology for distributing money that funders could be confident in.
Furthermore, the process of PB improved the transparency of decision making and the

quality of information that was provided publicly (DCLG 2011%).

In comparison to countries such as France and Portugal, the use and scale of PB in the UK
has been modest and tends to have involved the allocation of small grants. Under this
model, residents are given a say in the kind of projects that will be run in their communities.
Nevertheless, some projects in the UK have been of a larger scale. For example the London
borough of Tower Hamlets, allocated over £5 million and Newcastle set aside £2.25 million
for PB projects. However, PB in the UK is not generally seen as a means of producing social
change. Rather, it has tended to be used as a means of increasing community engagement,

empowerment, cohesion and pride (Sgueo 2016).

PB in Wales

Much like the rest of the UK, PB in Wales has been delivered via smaller grants by voluntary
organisations and public bodies. The sums involved have not been particularly large
but many of the processes have mirrored those used by larger PB funds, adapting them to a
smaller scale. The Police and Crime Commissioner in North Wales, for example, used PB
to allow community groups in Wrexham and Flintshire to bid for a share of £42,000 made up
of money seized from criminals. At the smaller end of the scale, the housing association
Cartrefi Conway used PB to distribute small community grants of up to £2,500. Residents
were encouraged to submit ideas which then shortlisted before moving on to a community

voting process.

Local councils have also used PB to distribute funds in various ways across Wales. Colwyn
Bay Town Council allocated £50,000 to PB to prioritise projects for young people whilst
Denbighshire County Council ran a PB project for local residents to spend £25,000 in Ruthin

4 The study by the DCLG provides a comprehensive review of PB in England analysing factors for success as

well as the variety of costs for PB exercises at a local authority level.

-
P
anl

Pack Page 35 10



park. Coedpoeth Community Council used PB to help allocate their Community Council
funds. The Community Safety partnership in Blaenau Gwent asked residents to submit

project proposals of up to £3,000 which were then allocated via a PB process.

Gwynydd Council have also used a budget calculator mechanism (the Gwynydd Challenge)
to allow residents to feed in their views on the Council budget. Like many of the better
calculators, this process outlines the different elements of the budget spend and the
potential outcome of cutting funds in particular services. However, many would not see
this as true PB as no pot of money is allocated for distribution, and the final decisions are

made by the councillors and not through public voting.

The Welsh Government have also produced a toolkit for using PB with young people® but we
were unable to find any evaluation of its impact in Wales.

Whilst there are a number of examples of PB in Wales, it is fair to say that the practice is not
widespread amongst any area or organisations. However, the examples above show
that there is potential for PB to be used in a number of different areas of Wales and

across a number of organisations.

PB in Scotland

PB in Scotland has been increasing over the last few years with the Scottish
Government driving to improve engagement and participation of citizens in decision
making. This ambition was developed into policy through the Community Empowerment
(Scotland) act of 2015 which aimed (amongst other things) to strengthen citizens voices in
the decisions and services that matter to them. In order to achieve, this the Scottish
Government have created the Community Choices fund (£1.5 million) specifically to fund
and support PB in Scotland. This is a national budget but delivered locally and has a
redistributive element with the funding targeted particularly in deprived areas. The fund
aims to build on the support provided by the Scottish Government for PB since 2014 as
part of a broader agenda around democratic innovation and engaged citizenship. The fund
has been used for numerous local projects across Scotland. Glasgow University has been

commissioned to review the impact of this work but the evaluation report is not due until

5 https://pbnetwork.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/04/Welsh-Govt-PB-toolkit. pdf

-
P
anl

Pack Page 36 1


https://pbnetwork.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/04/Welsh-Govt-PB-toolkit.pdf

August 20178, Interestingly, although the process of participation is locally led, the
Scottish Government sees it as a national PB programme prioritised to those areas which

are most deprived.

A Framework for Developing Participatory Budgeting

As set out above, whilst there are numerous differing typologies of PB and
disagreement over its intended aims and purposes, it is nevertheless possible to distill some
dimensions of variability that can structure the development of a PB process. Below we
frame these as questions that need to be addressed in determining the approach to be
pursued. But it is worth noting at that the answer to each of these interacts with the answer
to the others and, fundamentally, to the question of what the overall aim is (the first

guestion).

Alongside these questions, there is a separate issue about whether and to what extent
the PB process should seek to redistribute wealth, as well as important questions about
resources (who plays what role and what this means for the resourcing of the process), and
about the interaction between any new PB process and the existing legislative and
institutional landscape (e.g. The Well-Being of Future Generations Act, Public

Service Boards, Town and Community Councils, third sector organisations etc.).

What is the aim?

This is the first and most fundamental question, and should shape the development of
the whole process. As the previous section shows, there are different possible outcomes
from engaging people in budgetary decisions, which are linked to the level of participation

but go more broadly than this. For example, one might seek to use PB:

- as a way of changing the relationship between citizen and state, and developing new
forms of governing; or

- to engage people who feel disempowered and disconnected from governmental
decision making; or

- to improve ‘buy-in’ for budgetary decisions; or

6 More information about the projects funded can be found at https://pbscotland.scot/. What Works Scotland,
have also produced a number of reviews and guides relating to PB (all of which can be found here
http://whatworksscotland.ac.uk/) and PB Scotland also acts as a hub for sharing and learning about the work
being done by PB initiatives around Scotland. The PB Network
[https://pbnetwork.org.uk/category/resources/case-studies/] plays a similar role across the UK

-
P
anl

Pack Page 37 12


https://pbscotland.scot/
http://whatworksscotland.ac.uk/
https://pbnetwork.org.uk/category/resources/case-studies/

- to work with a specific population to improve the allocation of resources in a

particular area (either geographical, or area of spend).

This list is purely illustrative, but each would have different implications for the subsequent
guestions — about the level of participation, who would participate, when and how. They
would also have different implications for the amount of time and resources that would need
to be invested to develop and manage the required structures and process, and to address

any associated capacity issues.

What should the degree of participation be?

As discussed above (see figure 1), different types of PB can be categorised according to the
level of participation that might be used in the process, from consultation, through
involvement and collaboration, to empowerment’. As one moves across the spectrum from
consultation through to empowerment, decision making responsibility shifts from elected

representatives to citizens.

Control and decision making are areas of significant debate in the context of PB.
Many commentators argue that, to qualify as PB, the process must allow the participants
to have control of decision making, but there are variations of PB where the eventual

decision still rests with elected representatives, or statutory bodies.

Ultimately the level of participation has to reflect the intended aim. It will also determine

which types of participatory method would be appropriate to pursue.

What is the scale of the PB process?
There are different elements to the question of scale:

Geographical scale (e.g. national, regional or local)

Almost all of the examples of PB to date have been at a local / municipality level. However,
larger PB experiments have taken place in Paris and New York, and Portugal is now
attempting a national PB exercise (although this builds on ten years of experience of running
local PB projects). Smaller geographical areas make the process easier and less resource
intensive to manage. Larger scale PB exercises also need to mitigate against the risk that
the projects funded are concentrated in certain areas and are not ‘visible’ to the wider

population.

7 As discussed above, the lowest level of participation — ‘inform’ — is not considered sufficient to be a form of PB.

-
P
anl

Pack Page 38 13



Budget type and scale (e.g. small grant allocation, or setting priorities for mainstream

budgets)

In the UK, community grant allocation has been the main form of PB funding, but using

mainstream budgets can lead to more significant changes to traditional service delivery

mechanisms, and is more likely to be sustainable (Harkins and Escobar, 2015).

The focus (whether a budget is linked to a specific theme, such as local regeneration, or

linked to a geographical area)

The current national PB process in Portugal, for example, is focused around five themes:
culture, agriculture, science, education and training of adults. But it also has a
geographical dimension, with 8 groups of proposals, targeting different territories: 1 is
nationwide; 1 for each of the 5 regions of mainland Portugal; and 1 for each of the 2
Autonomous Regions (Azores and Madeira). These groups do not compete with each
other, since each one has its own equal financial allocation (more information on the

Portuguese national model can be found in Appendix A).

Who will be involved in the process?

In some examples, PB has involved whole populations within a specific area (such as
in Paris). Others have targeted specific groups. For example, Boston allocated $1m of
capital funds for young people to spend through PB. The project, Youth Lead the
Change: Participatory Budgeting Boston, has engaged thousands of young people in the
democratic process (ldox 2016). Other examples include a combination of
representative groups, NGOs, or private companies. ldentifying who will be involved in
the process can have a dramatic effect on both the resources involved and the eventual

outcome.

The participants identified to be involved should be led by both the initial aim of the process
and the scale at which it is being operated. Toronto Community Housing (TCH) for example
wanted to give TCH residents the opportunity to decide how to spend capital funds
to improve their communities. They therefore used tenants’ councils to receive
project suggestions from residents and then agree the priority projects for their
district. Representatives from these councils also met to decide on two projects to be

implemented for TCH as a whole (Sintomer et al 2013).

What stage will people be involved?

It is possible to identify five stages to a PB process (adapted from Leighninger and
Rinehart 2016):

)
144

P

Pack Page 39 14



Allocation of a portion of a public body’s budget to PB
Articulating what the ‘need’ is that will be addressed through the PB process

Development of project proposals

Selection of projects to be funded

o > w D E

Authorities then commit to implementing the winning projects which are subsequently

monitored and reported on

Depending on the approach taken, participants might be involved from stage two onwards.
Again, the overall aim should help to determine which stage(s) participants are involved in
and in what way. If the intention is to empower participants, for example, this might suggest
involving them at every stage of the process — simply allowing people to vote on a set of

proposals that have already been decided risks being viewed as tokenistic.

The approach taken in Paris is interesting in this regard. Starting in 2014, the newly elected
Mayor was determined to implement PB as soon as possible, accepting that their first
iteration would not be perfect and that it would be a learning process. Initially the Mayor’s
office selected 15 projects and asked Parisians to prioritise them. The second round was
much more comprehensive, with the Mayor and her team implementing both digital and
offline systems by which citizens could suggest project ideas with appropriate support.
These ideas were then vetted against a number of criteria, of which feasibility was vital.
Once shortlisted, a funded public campaign was organised to raise awareness and allow
people to be informed and debate the projects’ merits. Finally, a vote took place in order to
prioritise differing projects, and the successful projects were implemented. Each of the
successful projects was monitored to ensure they were being implemented effectively
(Napolitano 2015).

What is the method of involvement?

There are many different methods or approaches to involving and engaging participants.
Broadly, it is helpful to distinguish between two categories: deliberative and aggregative
(Harkins and Escobar, 2015). The former encourages discussion and debate among

participants. Aggregative approaches are based on participants voting.

Many advocates of PB argue that a deliberative process whereby participants can discuss
and debate the merits of differing proposals before voting is an intrinsic part of PB. However,
there are examples of PB which do not involve any deliberation, or where
only representatives or delegates are involved in deliberation. Moreover, different
methods might be used at different stages of the process; for example, projects could be
developed through deliberation among delegates, but then a wider group vote on which

of these projects are funded.

-
P
anl

Pack Page 40 15



The development of digital technologies has enabled people to be involved in PB in differing
ways. There are examples (such as Cologne) where PB processes are conducted
purely online with project suggestions submitted electronically, debate conducted via
blogs and forums before a final vote is made through electronic means (Sintomer et al
2013). Other PB experiments have used a combination of digital and face-to-face
mechanisms to improve participation and deliberation. More information on the use of
digital in PB can be found in Appendix B, but the important lesson from the evidence is
that digital PB should be used alongside traditional forms of engagement to

complement the mechanisms, rather than in isolation.

The Challenges for Effective Implementation

The available evidence points to a number of challenges relating to the implementation

of PB which are important to consider.

Engagement and representation

Ensuring that any PB process genuinely reflects the views of the whole of society rather
than a small and elite minority of participants is a considerable challenge. For
example, a common criticism of attempts at PB in Germany is that participants are typically
middle aged, highly qualified, employed men (Masser 2016). In other words, those
most likely to participate in PB processes in Germany are those already best
represented in most other political processes. Tackling this means not only widening

participation, but targeting those who are ‘hardest to reach’.

Evidence suggests that the representative and participatory potential of PB hinges on
four factors. Firstly, in order to ensure sustained engagement with PB processes and
limit attrition over time, it is paramount that the process result in tangible outcomes to prove
that people’s engagement has had an impact. Secondly, the process also needs to be
ongoing, in order to build support and increase engagement over a long period (Sintomer et
al 2103). Thirdly, there also needs to be effective marketing of the PB process to ensure
everyone is aware of what is happening, how they can be involved and the impact that
can be made. Finally, additional resources are often required to target those who are

hardest to reach to ensure broad participation.

There is the potential to use digital technologies to reach a much broader range of
participants. One particularly interesting example is in Portugal where there are plans to trial

the use of ATMs to offer people the opportunity to vote on PB projects. However,

-
P
anl

Pack Page 41 16



using digital technology does not guarantee wider participation, and the evidence
recommends that digital mechanisms should always be used alongside traditional
face-to-face engagement to maximise participation and ensure everyone has the

opportunity to contribute (Democratic Society 2016).

Sustaining the process

One of the recurrent problems encountered with PB, including in those areas with
considerable experience of deploying PB processes (such as in Brazil or Spanish cities like
Cordoba), concerns the discontinuation of the process due to changes of administration and
lack of cross-party support. One of the fundamentals of PB is that it needs to be a
continuous process to succeed. Even in Portugal where there has been localised PB for over
ten years, officials believe it will take over five years for their national PB process to bed in.
However, party politics can easily override the community politics on which PB often
depends, leaving participatory institutions typically at the mercy of representative institutions
(Harkins and Escobar 2015).

This is a difficult issue to avoid, as politicians and political parties often differ on their
views of, and support for, PB. The most obvious solution is to get cross-party
consensus and potentially to make some statutory commitment. An alternative is to develop
the process in a way that encourages it to become socially and institutionally
embedded (e.g. through encouraging its use at multiple levels, with a range of

institutions and with a wide range of people).

Tangible outcomes and a transparent process

To be successful, participants must be able to see the impact of their contribution®. Any PB
process must have a tangible result that citizens feel they have participated in achieving. In
the absence of actions resulting from a PB process, individuals will quickly become
disillusioned and disengaged from the process, since their efforts are not linked to concrete

impact.

Where people are voting on projects, it is important that all projects be assessed as feasible

before the voting process gets underway. Assessing the feasibility of a project is normally a

8 This is one of the reasons why budget calculators are typically not classified as type of PB, since it is very
difficult for participants to see how their involvement influenced decision making or what outcomes stemmed from
their engagement. There are some examples where there has been effective feedback from budget calculators

which are briefly mentioned in the literature, but they are not generally referred to as a PB mechanism.

-
P
anl

Pack Page 42 17



task undertaken by the organisation overseeing the PB process. Feasibility should be tested
against pre-written criteria in order to ensure a transparent account of why a project was
accepted or rejected. Depending on the scale of the PB process, this may place a
considerable duty on responsible organisations. For example, in the second year of its
implementation, the Paris PB process received 5,000 project ideas. Using clear feasibility
criteria, these were subsequently sifted down to 77 Paris-wide, and 500 district-specific,
projects (De Bulb 2016).

However, whilst feasibility is a necessary condition for successful projects, it is not sufficient
to guarantee favourable outcomes. Support for selected projects must also continue
throughout implementation, and progress must be continually fed back to demonstrate
impact.

Measurement and evidence for PB

Given the diversity of possible aims and approaches, it is important to think about what
impact PB is intended to have, and how this will be measured. Effective baseline data need
to be collected to allow the measurement of improvements in the stated aims and objectives.
Without these elements, it may always be possible to give an intuitively plausible account of
the positive impacts of PB, but it will not be possible to empirically prove it or explain what
causal mechanisms are at the heart of the process. This points to the need for a robust
evaluation framework surrounding PB approaches, making clear the aims and objectives,
the causal mechanisms which will deliver them and the evidence which could be used to

assess their effectiveness.

Governance and capacity

Effective PB processes are driven by strong effective leadership and ownership of the
process. Areas also need to have both the technical competence and resources to conduct
selected projects, alongside robust accountability mechanisms that ensure projects are
undertaken and that people’s views are represented. Finally, meaningful participation in a
PB process will require citizens to be able to access the necessary information and skills to

make informed decisions about how funding should be allocated.

Implications for the Welsh Government Budget Process

The first step in designing a PB process for the national budget in Wales will be determining

what it is that the process is seeking to achieve. What is clear from the evidence reviewed is

-
P
anl

Pack Page 43 18



that more ambitious aims require time and resources to become established. As experience
from elsewhere shows, this can usefully start with more modest approaches that evolve over
time; for example scaling up the participation across the different stages (as with the
example in Paris), so that in year one participants vote on possible projects, but in

subsequent years, they are also asked to put forward ideas for projects to be voted on.

It will also be important to consider the scale, both in terms of the geographical footprint and
the type of budget that would be subject to PB. Launching a national process which does not
build on local or regional processes would be unprecedented, and careful consideration
would need to be given to how to ensure equitable distribution both in terms of participation
and in terms of the beneficiaries of any funding. In a time of budget pressures,
identifying new funding to distribute through PB will be challenging, and recommending
that areas of mainstream funding be allocated by or diverted to PB may encounter
opposition.

Depending on the level of ambition, it will be important to appropriately resource any
PB process. Genuine, meaningful engagement is resource intensive, and inadequate
resourcing of any process risks not only failing to realise potential benefits, but also

generating negative outcomes in terms of public disengagement and disillusionment.

Finally, while the legislative, policy and institutional landscape in Wales arguably lends itself
to the development of PB, it will be important to map existing engagement activities by

public bodies in Wales to ensure that any new process is, at the very least, not duplicative.

Depending on the aspirations for the use of PB techniques in the national budget process in
Wales, this suggests that the focus in the short term might usefully be on laying
the foundations for future budgets through, for example:

e Deciding what the Welsh Government wants to achieve through PB (e.g.
redistribution, increased political engagement, more transparency etc.) and what
level of participation there will be from the public;

e Establishing a baseline measurement for the areas WG would like to improve (e.g.
understanding of budgets / awareness of budget pressures / engagement / trust in
politics);

e Testing which tools might be most suitable for engagement;

e |dentifying different stakeholders who could be involved in engagement events;

e Planning how the digital and face-to-face data will be analysed; and

e Exploring how differing levels of Government can be involved in PB so that it
becomes recognised as part of the governing process rather than a one-off exercise.

This could be pursued alongside the use of other forms of engagement or consultation that

signal an intended direction of travel. It could be possible, for example, for the Welsh

)
144

P

Pack Page 44 19



Government to engage with certain groups on their budget proposals at an early stage in
order to get feedback. It may also be possible to set up an online budget calculator tool
using a number of off-the-shelf systems available (e.g You Choose®). This would allow
citizens to input how they would allocate public finances and would provide valuable
information with which to complement existing stakeholder group feedback. If this approach
were pursued, it would be important to be clear about whether and how it fitted in to broader
engagement and future aspirations for PB in Wales. Without this, it might risk people feeling

further removed from the decision making process.

9 You Choose is an online budget simulator which has been used by a number of local authorities across the UK
to involve the public in seeing how they would address budget pressures. More information about You Choose

can be found https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/research/software-and-tools/youchoose-budget-tool

-
P
anl

Pack Page 45 20


https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/research/software-and-tools/youchoose-budget-tool

References

Abers, R. (2000) Inventing local democracy. Grassroots politics in Brazil. Lynne
Rienner Publishers, Boulder/London.

Allegretti, G,. and Herzberg, C.(2005) Participatory budgets in Europe. Between
efficiency and growing local democracy Transnational Institute. Briefing No 2004/5.
Transnational Institute, Amsterdam.

Avritzer, L. (2002) Democracy and the public space in Latin America. Princeton
University Press, Princeton, NJ.

Bassoli, M. (2012) Participatory Budgeting in Italy: An Analysis of (Almost Democratic)
Participatory Governance Arrangements. International Journal of Urban and Regional
Research Volume 36.6 pp. 1183-1203. Retrieved from
http://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/j.1468-2427.2011.01023.x/epdf

Baiocchi, G. (2005) Militants and citizens: the politics of participatory democracy in
Porto Alegre. Stanford University Press, Stanford, CA

Boudling, C and Wampler, B. (2009) Voice, Votes, and Resources: Evaluating the Effect
of Participatory Democracy on Well-being. World Development Volume 38.1 pp. 125-135.
Retrieved from http://ac.els-cdn.com/S0305750X09000953/1-s2.0-S0305750X09000953-
main.pdf?_tid=14c76402-1ace-11e7-a292-

00000aacb362&acdnat=1491485987 c7ce783ebebebaf157298159d7db22b9

Bowers, A, P. and Bunt, L. (2016) Your Local Budget Unlocking the Potential of
Participatory Budgeting. Nesta, London. Retrieved from
https://lwww.nesta.org.uk/sites/default/files/your_local_budget.pdf

De Bulb, A. (2016) Participatory budgeting goes digital in Paris. Retrieved from
https://blog.bulbintown.com/participatory-budgeting-paris/

Department for Communities and Local Government (2011) Communities in the driving
seat: a study of Participatory Budgeting in England Final report. Department for
Communities and Local Government, London. Retrieved from https://pbnetwork.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2016/09/SQW-report-2011.pdf

Dias, N. (ed.) (2014) Hope for democracy 25 years of participatory budgeting
worldwide. Nelson Dias, Sao Bréas de Alportel.

Democratic Society (2016) Digital tools and Scotland’s Participatory Budgeting
programme - A report by the Democratic Society for the Scottish Government
February  2016. The Democratic  Society, Edinburgh. Retrieved  from
http:/mwww.demsoc.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/01/DS-Digital-Tools-paper.pdf

Escobar, O. and Elstub, S. (2016) Deliberative innovations: Using ‘mini-publics’ to
improve participation and deliberation at the Scottish Parliament. Retrieved from
https://test123582.files.wordpress.com/2017/04/deliberativeinnovations-researchpaper.pdf

)
144

san

Pack Page 46 21


http://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/j.1468-2427.2011.01023.x/epdf
http://ac.els-cdn.com/S0305750X09000953/1-s2.0-S0305750X09000953-main.pdf?_tid=14c76402-1ace-11e7-a292-00000aacb362&acdnat=1491485987_c7ce783ebebe6af157298159d7db22b9
http://ac.els-cdn.com/S0305750X09000953/1-s2.0-S0305750X09000953-main.pdf?_tid=14c76402-1ace-11e7-a292-00000aacb362&acdnat=1491485987_c7ce783ebebe6af157298159d7db22b9
http://ac.els-cdn.com/S0305750X09000953/1-s2.0-S0305750X09000953-main.pdf?_tid=14c76402-1ace-11e7-a292-00000aacb362&acdnat=1491485987_c7ce783ebebe6af157298159d7db22b9
https://www.nesta.org.uk/sites/default/files/your_local_budget.pdf
https://blog.bulbintown.com/participatory-budgeting-paris/
https://blog.bulbintown.com/participatory-budgeting-paris/
https://pbnetwork.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/SQW-report-2011.pdf
https://pbnetwork.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/SQW-report-2011.pdf
http://www.demsoc.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/01/DS-Digital-Tools-paper.pdf
https://test123582.files.wordpress.com/2017/04/deliberativeinnovations-researchpaper.pdf

Frances, B., Newenham-Kahindi, A., and Herremans, I. (2010) When suits meet roots: The
antecedents and consequences of community engagement strategy, Journal of
Business Ethics, 95(2): 297-318.

Goldfrank, B. (2007) Lessons from Latin American experience in participatory
budgeting. In A. Shah (ed.), Participatory budgeting, World Bank Institute, Public Sector
Governance and Accountability Series, Washington, DC.

Gret, M. and Y, Sintomer. (2005) The Porto Alegre experiment: learning lessons for a
better democracy. Zed Books, London.

Harkins, C and Escobar, O. (2015) Participatory Budgeting in Scotland: An overview of
strategic design choices and principles for effective delivery. Glasgow Centre for
Population Health, WWS. Retrieved from http://www.gcph.co.uk/publications/605

Harkins, C., Moore, K., and Escobar, O. (2016) Review of 1lst Generation Participatory
Budgeting in Scotland. What Works Scotland, Edinburgh.

Herzberg, C., Rocke, A., and Sintomer, Y. (2008) Participatory Budgeting in Europe:
Potentials and Challenges. International Journal of Urban and Regional Research Volume
32.1 pp 164-78.

Head, B, W. (2007) Community engagement: Participation on whose terms?, Australian
Journal of Political Science, 42(3): 441-454.

Idox (2016) Participatory Budgeting — Information Service in Focus. Retrieved from
http://informationservice.idoxgroup.com/iii/customerarea/infoservice/search.do?action=show
Document&refno=B45413

Jaramillo, M and Alcazar, L. (2017) Does Participatory Budgeting have an Effect on the
Quality of Public Services? The Case of Peru’s Water and Sanitation Sector. In G.
Perry, R. Angelescu Naqvi (eds.), Improving Access and Quality of Public Services in
America. Retrieved from http://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1057%2F978-1-137-59344-3 4

Leinghninger, M and Rinehart, C. (2016) Power to the people! (and settings for using it
wisely?). Public Agenda, Brooklyn NY.

Masser, K. (2013) Participatory Budgeting as its Critics See It. Retrieved from
http:/www.buergerhaushalt.org/en/article/participatory-budgeting-its-critics-see-it

Napolitano, A. (2015) Lessons From Paris, Home to Europe's Largest Participatory
Budget. Retrieved from http://techpresident.com/news/25441/paris-experiments-
participatory-budget-codesign

Park, A., Bryson, C., Clery, E., Curtice, J. and Phillips, M. (eds.) (2013) British Social
Attitudes: the 30th Report. Retrieved from www.bsa-30.natcen.ac.uk

-
san
anl

Pack Page 47 22


http://www.gcph.co.uk/publications/605
http://informationservice.idoxgroup.com/iii/customerarea/infoservice/search.do?action=showDocument&refno=B45413
http://informationservice.idoxgroup.com/iii/customerarea/infoservice/search.do?action=showDocument&refno=B45413
http://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1057%2F978-1-137-59344-3_4
http://www.buergerhaushalt.org/en/article/participatory-budgeting-its-critics-see-it
http://techpresident.com/news/25441/paris-experiments-participatory-budget-codesign
http://techpresident.com/news/25441/paris-experiments-participatory-budget-codesign
http://www.bsa-30.natcen.ac.uk/

Ruesch, M, A, and Wagner, M. (2012) - Participatory Budgeting in Germany:
Citizens as Consultants. Retrieved from http://www.internationalbudget.org/wp-
content/uploads/Ruesch-Wagner-PB-in-Germany.pdf

Rowe, Gene, and Lynn J. Frewer, (2005) A typology of public engagement mechanisms
Science, Technology, & Human Values, 30(2): 251-290.

Sintomer, Y., Herzberg, C., and Allegretti, G. (2013) Participatory Budgeting Worldwide.
Engagement Gobal, Bonn. Retrieved from

http:/www.ces.uc.pt/myces/UserFiles/livios/1097_DG-25_bf.pdf

Sgueo, G. (2016) Participatory budgeting: An innovative approach. European
Parliamentary Research Service, Brussels.

The PB Unit (2010) Participatory Budgeting in the UK — A Toolkit Second Edition
January. Retrieved from https://pbnetwork.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Participatory-
Budgeting-Toolkit-2010.pdf

The World Bank (2007) Participatory Budgeting Edited by Shah, A. Retrieved from
http://siteresources.worldbank.org/PSGLP/Resources/ParticipatoryBudgeting.pdf

UNDP (2001) Human development report 2001. UNDP, New York. Retrieved from
http://hdr.undp.org/en/content/human-development-report-2001

-
san
a-al

Pack Page 48 23


http://www.internationalbudget.org/wp-content/uploads/Ruesch-Wagner-PB-in-Germany.pdf
http://www.internationalbudget.org/wp-content/uploads/Ruesch-Wagner-PB-in-Germany.pdf
http://www.ces.uc.pt/myces/UserFiles/livros/1097_DG-25_bf.pdf
https://pbnetwork.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Participatory-Budgeting-Toolkit-2010.pdf
https://pbnetwork.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Participatory-Budgeting-Toolkit-2010.pdf
http://siteresources.worldbank.org/PSGLP/Resources/ParticipatoryBudgeting.pdf
http://hdr.undp.org/en/content/human-development-report-2001

Appendix A: Examples of the use of Participatory Budgeting

Since the original experiment in Porto Alegre in 1989, there are now estimated to be over
1000 examples of PB in Latin America, representing over a third of the instances of PB
worldwide (Sgueo 2016). In Europe there are also more than 1000 examples of PB in
practice across more than 100 European cities, including in large cities like Paris, Seville,
Spain, Rome, Lisbon and Berlin (Herzberg et al 2008). The PB processes implemented
across these areas demonstrate the significant diversity PB can take, not only in terms of
scale and scope of participation, but in terms of funds allocated, political principles
espoused, and capacity for the process to be sustained over time.

For instance, while PB has been routinely used by certain Latin American countries as a
means of redistributing wealth since the late 1980s, North America is only beginning to
embrace it. Thus, for example, New York spent over $24 million through PB in 2014, using
money that was previously under the sole control of elected politicians and public officials.
Further, in 2015, for the second year in a row, the city of Boston allocated $1,000,000 of
capital funds for young people to spend through PB. The project, Youth Lead the Change:
Participatory Budgeting Boston, has engaged thousands of young people in the democratic

process (ldox 2016).

In contrast to the primarily deliberative PB processes of large American cities, Iceland has
based its PB experiment on a hybrid model, coupling deliberative and redistributive goals to
help prioritise its spending since the introduction of austerity in the wake of the 2008
economic crisis. Participatory democracy is at the centre of its strategy to re-engage people
and rebuild democratic systems. Through its PB project, Better Neighbourhoods, 300 million
Icelandic Krona (ISK) (about £1.4m) is allocated each year based on citizens’ ideas of how
to improve 10 different neighbourhoods in Reykjavik, the capital city. Citizens submit their
ideas for projects they think will improve their neighbourhoods, and the City of Reykjavik
evaluates the costs and feasibility of each project. In this way, Iceland has seen tens of
thousands of people participate in the PB process, with over 1000 ideas submitted and 420
approved (Idox 2016).

To date, the largest sum of public money ever to be allocated for a PB process in Europe
was $426 million between 2015 and 2020, by the newly elected mayor in Paris. More details

on PB in Paris are in the section below.

-
P
anl

Pack Page 49 24



Paris

Paris has the biggest PB in Europe but is still relatively new to implementing this sort of
process. Starting in 2014, the newly elected mayor was determined to implement PB as
soon as possible, accepting that their first iteration would not be perfect and that it would be
a learning process. Initially the mayor’s office selected 15 projects for Parisians to prioritise
as the PB exercise. However, the second round was much more comprehensive, with the
Mayor and her team implementing both digital and offline systems by which citizens can
suggest project ideas with appropriate support. These ideas are then vetted against a
number of criteria, of which feasibility is vital. Once shortlisted, a funded public campaign is
organised to raise awareness and allow people to be informed and debate the projects’
merits. Finally, a vote takes place in order to prioritise differing projects, and the successful
projects are implemented. Each of the successful projects are then monitored to ensure they
are being implemented effectively (Napolitano 2015). One patrticularity of the Paris model
concerns its ‘nested’ structure, whereby, in addition to there being a Paris-wide PB process,
each of the 20 districts in Paris also have their own PB fund. In order to ensure the
effectiveness of the process at both the district and city level, resources have been granted
to both involve people and develop appropriate technologies to help people in the design

and implementation of their ideas.

Portugal

Portugal recently became the first country in the world to introduce a participatory budget at
the national level, building on many years’ experience of implementing PB at the local level.
Nevertheless, Portugal’s national PB process remains less well-known and recognised than
its regional and local programmes, which have been running for a number of years. As a
result, Portuguese authorities believe it will take at least five more years for the nationwide

program to become known and recognised.

The national Participatory Budget integrates groups of proposals with different territorial
scope — from the regional to the national. This is intended to allow for complete coverage of
the country, as well as broader engagement between local communities and citizens. The
Particpatory Budget Project (PBP) has 8 groups of proposals according to territory scope: 1
nationwide; 1 for each of the 5 regions of mainland Portugal; 1 for each of the 2 Autonomous
Regions (Azores and Madeira). These groups do not compete with each other, since each

one has its own equal financial allocation.

The total budget will be EUR 3 million, to be included in the 2017 state budget. The money

will be invested in the areas of culture, agriculture, science, education and training of adults.

-
P
anl

Pack Page 50 25



The process has two main phases: the phase for presenting proposals and a phase for
voting on the projects. The phase for presenting proposals takes place between January and
April. All proposals for the PBP must be presented in person at Participative Meetings, held
in several places throughout the country. Proposals should provide details of project
implementation and identify the territories covered in order to provide a concrete analysis

and rigorous costing.

The voting phase takes place between June and September. Each citizen will have the right
to two votes — one for regional projects and another for national projects — and may choose
to vote through the online portal or by SMS. Voting via ATM is being considered for a
possible 2018 implementation.

Timetable (2017) - Information taken from Portugal PB website https://opp.gov.pt/

1st stage - 9 January to 21 April 2017

Discussion and elaboration of proposals to the OPP (Participatory Budget Portugal
[translation]), in Participatory Meetings, in the 7 OPP regions. Envisaged the completion of at
least two participatory meetings for each NUT Il and autonomous regions to cover the

largest possible number of people.
2nd phase - 24 April to 12 May 2017

Technical analysis of the proposals and transformation into projects for each of the ministries
and Regional Secretariats and the respective services, with skills in the areas of the

proposals.
3rd Phase - 15 May to 31 May 2017

Publication of the provisional list of projects to put it to a vote and period for challenge by

proponents.

4th Phase - 1 June to 15 September 2017
Vote by citizens in OPP projects of your choice.
5th Stage - September 2017

Public presentation of the winning projects.

-
P
anl

Pack Page 51 26


https://opp.gov.pt/

Online-based participatory budget of the city of Cologne

Participatory budgeting has been growing quite significantly over the past 20 years but the
German model is very different from the original Porte Alegre PB as it did not have
redistribution and anti-corruption as its main aim. Instead much of the PB exercises in
Germany are firstly trying to modernise local government structures through citizen
participation and secondly moving towards more responsive government by giving citizens a
greater say in decision making (Ruesch and Wagner 2012). Cologne is just one example of
PB in Germany but is interesting because it was conducted completely online. There are
mixed views as to whether this is a positive or negative methodology and this is discussed
more in Appendix B but the information below provides an insight as to how the PB exercise

was conduced.

“ Every year, over a four-week period citizens are able to submit their proposals on the city’s
expenditure, cost-saving measures and revenues using the http://buergerhaushalt.stadt-
koeln.de/ platform, where they can also comment on and rate proposals made by other
citizens and the local authority. The ten most highly rated proposals are then reviewed by
the administration, and forwarded to the Cologne city council along with a statement. The
individual proposals and the decisions taken by the council are explained in the
accountability report and on the online platform. The threshold for participating online is low,
requiring only a user name and password. Citizens who do not have access to the Internet
can submit proposals through a call centre or in writing. Thanks also to its intensive public
relations work, Cologne achieved very high participation rates of 11,000 and 14,000 active
participants in its first and second participatory budgets.” Ruesch and Wagner (2012) Pg 11

-
P
anl

Pack Page 52 21


http://buergerhaushalt.stadt-koeln.de/
http://buergerhaushalt.stadt-koeln.de/

Appendix B: The Role of Digital Technology

Improvements in digital technology give PB practitioners the opportunity to reach
significantly more people than traditional engagement methods, which are usually predicated
on physical presence at meetings. Technology also simplifies the decision making process
by providing simple voting mechanisms via a computer, tablet or smart phone. A number of
local authorities have begun to use technology to provide interactive budget calculators.
These allow local citizens to see where money is being spent and make suggestions as to
how priorities / spending could be changed in an area. Importantly, many of the programs
flag up the implications these changes could have on service delivery to allow citizens to
make more informed decisions. Examples of these budget calculators include:

e https://lwww.letstalkbudget.org.uk/
e http://lyouchoose.esd.org.uk/Lewisham/home/index/2014

e http://www.highland.gov.uk/news/article/9957/see_the_challenges_of setting_the_co
uncil_budget_with_our_budget_simulator

e https://youchoose.esd.org.uk/liverpool
e http://budgetcalculator.shapeauckland.co.nz/

However, many PB advocates would not see these budget calculators as a true PB process.
Indeed, whilst budget calculators engage the public in the budget process, there is no actual
pot of funds to be allocated, no deliberation mechanism for debate and no meaningful final
vote as to what the outcome will be. Some can be more consultative than others, when they
inform participants about how their views influenced eventual budget decisions.
Nevertheless, these tools are generally used as a means of informing citizens on budgetary

pressures rather than properly engaging them in a process.

What Works Scotland has done its own investigation into the use of digital technologies for
PB (Democratic Society 2016) and found that there are some very promising digital tools
that can help with all aspects of the PB process. This includes tools for making project
suggestions, for hosting deliberation fora and multiple tools for voting. However, some of
these instruments are more specialised than others, and may be more appropriate, suitable,
or effective at different stages of the process. The digital tools that they recommend include

(see Democratic Society 2016):

o Dialogue’ by Delib — Demo available at: https://pb.dialogue-app.com/

-
P
anl

Pack Page 53 28


https://www.letstalkbudget.org.uk/
http://youchoose.esd.org.uk/Lewisham/home/index/2014
http://www.highland.gov.uk/news/article/9957/see_the_challenges_of_setting_the_council_budget_with_our_budget_simulator
http://www.highland.gov.uk/news/article/9957/see_the_challenges_of_setting_the_council_budget_with_our_budget_simulator
https://youchoose.esd.org.uk/liverpool
http://budgetcalculator.shapeauckland.co.nz/
https://pb.dialogue-app.com/

e Your Priorities’ & ‘Open Active Voting’ by Citizens Foundation — Demos available at
https://scotland-pb-demo.yrpri.org/ and https://tiny.cc/pbscot

o Participare’ by Change Tomorrow - Demo available from
https://myalba.participare.io/#/

e Democracy 2.1 — Demo available from http://tiny.cc/pbd21

¢ Zilino by Intellitics — Demo available from http://scotland-pb-demo.zilino.com/

However, whilst their review does identify the positive elements of using digital in PB, there
are also some very strong warnings about an over-reliance on technology. The report
stresses that, whilst digital tools can increase participation in PB, they need to be
complimentary to existing engagement mechanisms and not replace them. Furthermore, the
authors also caution against an over-reliance on technology as it is the quality of the PB
process itself, as well as the manner in which digital tools are employed, rather than simply
their use, that will determine the success of a PB process. Indeed, the study also found that
digital tools can have their own issues for engagement by leading to the formation of a
‘digital divide’ between those who can, or have the skills to, access the digital sphere, and to
those who cannot, or do not wish to participate using digital means (Democratic society
2016). They therefore warn against institutions taking a ‘digital only’ approach and advocate
using both online and offline tools for all aspects of the process, while ensuring that these

are effectively integrated and not seen as separate from each other.

-
P
anl

Pack Page 54 29


https://scotland-pb-demo.yrpri.org/
https://tiny.cc/pbscot
https://myalba.participare.io/#/
http://tiny.cc/pbd21
http://scotland-pb-demo.zilino.com/

The Public Policy Institute for Wales

The Public Policy Institute for Wales improves policy making and delivery by commissioning
and promoting the use of independent expert analysis and advice. The Institute is
independent of government but works closely with policy makers to help develop fresh
thinking about how to address strategic challenges and complex policy issues. It:

e Works directly with Welsh Ministers to identify the evidence they need,;

e Signposts relevant research and commissions policy experts to provide additional

analysis and advice where there are evidence gaps;
e Provides a strong link between What Works Centres and policy makers in Wales; and

e Leads a programme of research on What Works in Tackling Poverty.

For further information please visit our website at www.ppiw.org.uk

Author Details

Emyr Williams, Dr Emily St. Denny, and Dan Bristow are staff at the PPIW.

mL This report is licensed under the terms of the Open Government Licence

Pack Page 55


http://www.ppiw.org.uk/

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee 7‘ -
NS FEATS = K\ e
Agerildl Heidi s
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a Llywodraeth Leol h
Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government - ;ﬂ:

Llywodraeth Cymru

Welsh Government
Eich cyf/Your ref

Ein cyf/Our ref: MA-P/MD/2585/17

Simon Thomas AM,
Chair Finance Committee,
The National Assembly for Wales,
Cardiff Bay,
Cardiff
CF99 1NA )
| September 2017

KDJZ&\/ S L el
Thank you for your Committee’s scrutiny of the First Supplementary Budget 2017-18
and the report that followed.

I attach a written response to the recommendation made.

| hope you find this useful and look forward to working with you in future.
%‘Sh L

Mark Drakeford AM/AC
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a Llywodraeth Leol
Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:
Caerdydd « Cardiff 0300 0604400
CF99 1NA Correspondence .Mark.Drakeford@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in WelRaﬁkcE?ﬁ@ﬁdgh@ received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.



Written Response to the Report of the Finance Committee: Scrutiny of
the Welsh Government First Supplementary Budget 2017-18

23 August 2017

This Supplementary Budget was the first opportunity to amend budgetary
plans for the current financial year which were published in December 2016

and approved by the Assembly on 10" January 2017.

The budget was mainly administrative in nature and regularised a small
number of allocations from our reserves, switches between resource and
capital and transfers between portfolios. It included adjustments to the Wales
DEL budget to reflect transfers and consequentials received in the UK
Government’s March Budget 2017, and it also reflected changes in Annually

Managed Expenditure forecasts.

| would like to thank the Finance Committee for the work undertaken and |

look forward to working in partnership with the members in future.
A detailed response to the report's recommendation is set out below:
Recommendation

The Committee recommends that, in developing the new rail franchise, the

“Welsh Government ensures that contracts for improving services are drafted

tightly to place responsibility on the company to fund improvements such as

wi-fi.

Response: Accept

Transport for Wales are using a competitive procurement process to identify
our preferred partner to operate the next franchise. The aim of a competitive
dialogue is to develop one or more suitable alternative solutions capable of
meeting our requirements, which we deemed necessary as we are seeking

innovative solutions for delivering rail services.

Pack Page 57



The competitive process drives value for money in complex and high value
infrastructure procurement projects. The process maintains competition,
delivers improved solutions with a better deal for the public sector, and
provides greater control over scope changes and cost increases often found

when delivering complex projects.
We have developed evaluation criteria and a scoring methodology tailored to

the complex procurement that responds to our priorities.

Financial Implications: None.

Mark Drakeford AM

Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government

Pack Page 58



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee
FIN(5)-21-17 PTN8 A
genda#t .8
Carl Sargeant AC/AM N / ) =
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gymunedau a Phlant _
Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children _ ;JQ

Llywodraeth Cymru
Ein cyf/Our ref: MA - L/CS/0496/17 Welsh Government
Simon Thomas AM
Chair

Finance Committee
National Assembly for Wales

i ) ‘i,
\ LL\September 2017

Dear Simon

ABOLITION OF THE RIGHT TO BUY AND ASSOCIATED RIGHTS (WALES) BILL

| would like to thank you and your colleagues on the Finance Committee for your
consideration of the Abolition of the Right to Buy and Associated Rights (Wales) Bill during
Stage 1scrutiny.

| have considered carefully the views expressed in the report and will publish updated
financial information in the revised Explanatory Memorandum following completion of Stage
2 proceedings. | will ensure that a copy of the revised Memorandum is sent to the
Committee.

Yours singerely

.kg
Ysgrifennydd y|Cabinet dros Gymunedau a Phlant
Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children

Canolfan Cyswillt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:

Bae Caerdydd - Cardiff Bay 0300 0604400
Caerdydd « Cardiff Gohebiaeth.Carl.Sargeant@llyw.cymru
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. p
ack Page 59

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.




Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee

znulhadc edla 01%“'2 9 FIN(5)-21-17 PTN9

National Assembly for Wales
Assembly Commission

Simon Thomas AM

Chair of Finance Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

14 September 2017

Dear Simon

Underspend from the Remuneration Board’s Determination

Thank you for your letter dated 6 July 2017.

We note your concern around the way the Commission profiles the budget and, in
particular, that a project of the size of the ground floor refurbishment should
have been highlighted at an earlier stage.

The Commission met on 17 July and took the opportunity to discuss your letter.
We agreed that the draft budget submission in September should provide
additional detail on the expected take-up by Assembly Members of the budget for
the Remuneration Board’s Determination.

We will liaise with the Remuneration Board and if timing allows, we will reflect any
changes being considered by the Board, for 2018-19 into this estimate.

In addition, we will include in our Draft 2018/19 Budget document, information
about the projects and priorities which could be appropriately financed from any
underspend on the Determination.

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales

7 Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 TNA Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 TNA
i SulafaThomas@cynulliad.cymru SulafaThomas@assemblywales
www.cynulliad.cymru Pack Rage 60 wales

0300 200 6227 0300 200 6227



We are satisfied that any projects identified will be scrutinised and funds will only
be released for essential and priority items for the Commission. The Commission
are also satisfied that there are taut and realistic spending plans in place for the
entire Assembly Commission budget.

Thank you again for challenging us to reflect on our approach.
As ever, if there is any further information your Committee would like, please let
me know.

Yours sincerely

Suzy Davies

cc Manon Antoniazzi, Nia Morgan

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English

Pack Page 61




Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee

Agepdd’lteény 2710

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations

Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales
By email
21/07/2017
Dear Simon,

Thank you for the opportunity to appear before the Finance Committee on July 5th.
| offered to provide further information to supplement the answers given during the session to support
the committee in its work.

The core guidance for the Well-being of Future Generations Act states that it ‘provides for better
decision-making'. And, so the focus of my evidence has been on what can be done to help and support
better decision-making, what needs to be avoided and what barriers need to be removed?

With this in mind, | have focused on how the Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA) can become a process
that helps legislators actively improve the quality of legislation and improve the way new legislation is
then implemented.

Our suggestions, drawing on the experience of the Well-being of Future Generations Act included:

e Reframing the RIA to be an improvement focused exercise rather than a compliance exercise;

e  Requiring the RIA to start at the same time as the legislation being its development, with a number of
key stages.

e Afundamental ‘do-nothing’ challenge at the beginning, continual review and updating with further
challenges at key stages.

e The report to the National Assembly would be a summary of the entire process as opposed to a snapshot
produced to comply with a standing order.

In terms of the experience for the Well-being of Future Generations Act, we noted that the RIA as
currently framed is focused on administrative procedure and compliance, whereas the Act itself, is
focused on fundamental, organisational cultural change.

| felt it may be helpful to share a number of documents that are helping to inform our current thinking.
Links can be found at the end of the email to documents under the themes of 'organisational cultural
change', 'embedding sustainable development', 'taking a long term view' and 'the concept of value'.
During my evidence, | set out my own commitment to walk the talk in relation to the Sustainable
Development principle - and to working in an integrated and collaborative way with the other
Commissioners in Wales. | highlighted ways in which we are currently working together and some areas
of opportunity for new joint-approaches. Public bodies have been clear in their conversations with me

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT

cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru col ta&fu atjoas.wales
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru fuﬁé afggﬁésg?



Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Dyfodol Commissioner
Cymru for Wales

about the need for us to support and drive behaviour change together and the joint work to date (such
as the work with the Children's Commissioner, using the Act as a framework to embed Children's Rights)
as been helpful, as has the overall approach to working together which all the Commissioners have
taken.

The duties of the Commissioners are, on the whole, complimentary and cross-cutting but it is important
to note the independent status of each office as a principle which underpins and supports the work. It is
the specific powers and duties conferred on each Commissioner, in areas which our elected members
have deemed of such importance that they require this additional focus, scrutiny and challenge, that
provides with a real opportunity to challenge those responsible for delivering public services to take an
integrated approach to policy-making and to harness our collective powers to change the way we do
business in Wales.

And finally, | talked about my draft framework for Future Generations which we are developing to
support better decision-making, particularly in relation to infrastructure projects. Copies of this are
attached.

| thank you again for the opportunity to provide evidence.

Yours sincerely,

Sophie

Links to documents under-pinning evidence
Organisational cultural change
https://www.iriss.org.uk/sites/default/files/iriss-insight-17.pdf

http://www.oecd.org/innovating-the-public-sector/Background-report.pdf

https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/leading-culture-change-employee-engagement-and-public-service-
transformation 2012 tcm18-14116.pdf

Embedding sustainable development
http://nbs.net/wp-content/uploads/Systematic-Review-Sustainability-and-Corporate-Culture.pdf

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT

cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru contactus@fut tis e,
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru futu regeneratitggﬁgs ?35& é 6 3


https://www.iriss.org.uk/sites/default/files/iriss-insight-17.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/innovating-the-public-sector/Background-report.pdf
https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/leading-culture-change-employee-engagement-and-public-service-transformation_2012_tcm18-14116.pdf
https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/leading-culture-change-employee-engagement-and-public-service-transformation_2012_tcm18-14116.pdf
http://nbs.net/wp-content/uploads/Systematic-Review-Sustainability-and-Corporate-Culture.pdf

Dyfodol Commissioner

Comisiynydd Future
Cenedlaethau’r Generations
Cymru for Wales

https://www.forumforthefuture.org/sites/default/files/project/downloads/steppinguppub-sector-
leadership.pdf

Long term

http://www.wlga.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=62&mid=665&fileid=68
http://www.oxfordmartin.ox.ac.uk/downloads/commission/Oxford Martin Now for the Long Term.p
df

The concept of value and integrated thinking
http://integratedreporting.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Focusing-on-value-creation-in-the-public-
sector- VFINAL.pdf

https://walesauditoffice.wordpress.com/2017/03/08/conwy-health-precinct-the-power-of-

perseverance/

Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol Cymru Future Generations Commissioner for Wales
Siambrau’r Farchnad, 5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair Market Chambers, 5-7 St Mary Street
Caerdydd, CF10 1AT Cardiff, CF10 1AT

cystylltwchani@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru col tgg atjeng.wales
cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru fuﬁé ﬂgﬁéﬁﬁ


https://www.forumforthefuture.org/sites/default/files/project/downloads/steppinguppub-sector-leadership.pdf
https://www.forumforthefuture.org/sites/default/files/project/downloads/steppinguppub-sector-leadership.pdf
http://www.wlga.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=62&mid=665&fileid=68
http://www.oxfordmartin.ox.ac.uk/downloads/commission/Oxford_Martin_Now_for_the_Long_Term.pdf
http://www.oxfordmartin.ox.ac.uk/downloads/commission/Oxford_Martin_Now_for_the_Long_Term.pdf
http://integratedreporting.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Focusing-on-value-creation-in-the-public-sector-_vFINAL.pdf
http://integratedreporting.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Focusing-on-value-creation-in-the-public-sector-_vFINAL.pdf
https://walesauditoffice.wordpress.com/2017/03/08/conwy-health-precinct-the-power-of-perseverance/
https://walesauditoffice.wordpress.com/2017/03/08/conwy-health-precinct-the-power-of-perseverance/

NEW ECONOMICS FOUNDATION / FUTURE GENERATIONS COMMISSIONER:
INFRASTRUCTURE FRAMEWORK BASED ON WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT
(Not for reproduction without permission from The Office of the Future Generations Commissioner)

5 WAYS OF WORKING

Ways of working Initial project development

Start designing your project from an understanding of how Wales might
be different several generations from now.

o Identify the long term trends that are most relevant to your project.
These might be social, economic/political, environmental or
technological and include known (e.g. depleting fossil fuels), and those
with a higher level of uncertainty (e.g. jobs and skills needed in the
future).

Long term: the importance of
balancing short-term needs with the
need to safeguard the ability to also
meet (c ng-term needs.

o How does your project mitigate or facilitate these trends?

Review of the project

Return to the trends you identified initially.

Consider how realistic the underlying assumptions are about future trends:
o Ifthese assumptions are found to be incorrect — how useful is your project
to the future of Wales?

Consider what will happen to the project at the end of its proposed lifespan.
o Can the materials be reclaimed / re-used / re-purposed?

Consider how sustainable the project will be over its lifespan.

o0 How does the project support long-term well-being of people in Wales?
o Will the project be self-sustaining, or require significant additional
resources?

Start from a broad consideration of the types of problem that your
project could help prevent in the future e.g. social, economic, cultural,
environmental.

Prevention: prevent problems
occurring or getting worse may help
public bodies meet their objectives.

How does your project support breaking negative cycles such as
poverty, poor health, environmental damage and loss of biodiversity?

How could your project minimise its own negative impacts e.g.
minimising waste and resource use?

Return to the problems and negative cycles that you identified that your
project could address.

Consider the assumptions underlying your project:
o Is your project reliant on other interventions being in place to
address the causes of long term cycles alongside your project?

0 What are the trade-offs emerging between different aspects of well-
being and sustainability and how have these been minimised?




Start by considering how your project objectives impact on other public
bodies wellbeing objectives.

o How could your project connect different public policy agendas and
generate co-benefits e.g. how can a transport project support

[l Clol E=ii oY g B elolaISiTo [STHTaTo Mo lo)A o [¥]o] [l improvements in health, culture, worklessness.
bodies' wellbeing objectives may
impact upon each of the wellbeing
goals, on their other objectives, or on

the objectives of other public bodies.

o Consider each of the seven wellbeing goals and identify any risks of
negatively impacting on other public bodies wellbeing objectives (noting
likelihood of negative impacts accumulating over time).

0 What practical steps will you take in your project to integrate your
project with existing plans and strategies of other public bodies to
maximise the project’s contribution across the seven wellbeing goals.

Return to how your project integrates with other public bodies wellbeing
objectives.

Consider the projects impact on the seven wellbeing goals:
o Which of wellbeing goals does your project directly impact?

o How can your project extend it's positive impact by alignment with relevant
public body strategies and wellbeing objectives?

0 What measures are in place to ensure that the project continues to positive
contribute to the Well-being Goals throughout its life?

Start by considering who are the key stakeholders from a range of
related sectors and disciplines who could support the development of
this project.

o ldentify these key stakeholders early so that collaboration can be

Collaboration: acting in productive and meaningful.

collaboration with any other person
(or different parts of the body itself)
that could help the body meet its
wellbeing objectives.

o Does your range of stakeholders include public, private and third
sector organisations?

o How will key stakeholders be involved in developing the project, and
at which stage of the project

Return to your key stakeholder list.

o0 Which groups/bodies have you identified who are working towards similar
goals around sustainability and well-being?

0 What mechanisms are in place to ensure this collaboration is effective?

o How will you ensure that collaboration continues through the life of the
project?




Involvement: the importance of
involving people with an interest in
achieving the well-being goals, and
ensuring that those people reflect the
diversity of the area which the body
serves.

Start by considering how well you understand the needs, and lived
experiences, of citizens who will be affected by this project, and how you
will use this to inform consideration of the need for the project.

o Consider how you will engage stakeholders with different forms of
expertise or knowledge, including how you will understand the needs of
the broader population and those not represented by specific interest
groups.

o How well do you understand the needs and challenges of people in
the area? Well-being Assessments will give some insight.

o Identify the key stakeholders affected directly and indirectly by the
project. How will stakeholders be involved in the identification of the
need for this project, and how will it be informed by their needs?

o How will key stakeholders be involved in the design and
development of the project?

o How will key stakeholders be involved in the delivery and / or
oversight of this project?

Return to how your project will involve citizens and stakeholder.

0 How has the project been shaped by key stakeholders affected by the
project, and patrticularly their needs and challenges?

o How will key stakeholders affected by the project continue to influence the
project throughout it’s life?

Q
o
o
~




NEW ECONOMICS FOUNDATION / FUTURE GENERATIONS COMMISSIONER:
INFRASTRUCTURE FRAMEWORK BASED ON WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT
(Not for reproduction without permission from The Office of the Future Generations Commissioner)

SEVEN WELL-BEING GOALS

Interpretation of key elements of act for

Aspect of the Act/ definition
framework

An innovative Wales is one with a thriving new business
sector, supporting social innovation and entrepreneurs.

Consider how innovation can be used to tackle social
determinants of poor health, growing businesses in areas
that have suffered economic decline, and opportunities for
green growth across Wales.

Related areas of wellbeing

The social determinants of poor health;
Growing businesses in areas that have suffered
economic decline;

Opportunities for green growth across Wales

Meeting the Act at a strategic level

How will this project push infrastructure provision
in a more sustainable, innovative direction?

How will this project open up opportunities for new
business sectors and production of public goods?

Designing your proposal to support the intentions
of the Act

How will this project innovate to meet the challenges, and take
advantage of the opportunities, set by the relevant trends
identified when thinking about the ‘long term’ in the Ways of
Working?

Is your project modular, and could it be adapted to a changed
Wales in future?

A productive Wales is creating goods and providing
services to meet its own needs, as well developing
strong export markets.

Consider environmental sustainability and social wellbeing.

Environmental sustainability and green growth;
Supporting resilient local communities and economies

How will it support the growth of low carbon
business sectors?

How will this project support productivity e.g. building local supply
chains, supporting economic resilience through diversity, or
providing energy through a thriving renewables sector?

How will this project have negative impacts on parts of local
economies? e.g. reduced costs of transporting food damaging
viability of local food producers: this may have some consumer
benefits but damages local economy and employment.

A low carbon Wales has an economy driven by green
growth, and supports people to live low carbon
lifestyles.

Prosperous: An innovative,
productive and low carbon society
which recognises

the limits of the global environment
and therefore uses resources
efficiently and proportionately
(including acting on climate change);
and which develops a skilled and
well-educated population in

consider the need for skills development, innovation, and
employment.

Need for skills development and employment;
Innovative economy, agile and able to adapt to future
change

How will this project encourage industry and
government to shift towards low carbon and green
economic growth?

What behaviours does this project encourage or discourage?

e.g. does it encourage private car use? Does it increase local
provision of services? Does it support an economy where jobs are
located where people live, rather than just in bigger cities? Does it|
encourage people and businesses to buy local?

How will this project help or impede people in living low carbon
lifestyles?

e.g. improving access to public transport access, and increasing
the supply of renewable energy.

an economy which generates wealth
and provides employment
opportunities, allowing people to
take advantage of the wealth
generated through securing decent
work.

A Wales which uses resources effectively and
proportionately builds efficiency into design (e.g.
lowering embedded carbon; building energy efficient
into design) and prioritises strategic use of globally
limited resources.

consider how you will reduce Wales' ecological footprint
and source materials locally. Also consider how you can
work with other public bodies in pursuit of shared goals to
allocate resources most efficiently.

Need to reduce Wales' ecological footprint and source
materials locally;

Working with other public bodies in pursuit of shared
goals to allocate resources most effectively

In a context where financial, ecological, and
material resources are finite, does this project
offer a responsible solution to the problems
posed?

Have less resource-intensive alternatives been
looked at, and if so what does this approach offer
over and above them?

How will the design of this project use resources efficiently and
proportionately?

For example:

How will it integrate low-carbon production techniques and reduce
the embedded carbon in materials used?

How will it maximise use of local resources and supply chains?
How will it minimise waste and its impact?




Improving employment in Wales requires reducing
unemployment and underemployment as well as
ensuring that new jobs created are good quality jobs.

consider the role of employment in reducing inequality, the
need to develop jobs in low carbon industries, and how you
might collaborate with other skills/education bodies in
Wales.

Role of employment in reducing inequality;

need to develop jobs in low carbon industries;

how might you collaborate with other skills/education
bodies in Wales.

How will your project create long-term, sustainable
jobs?

Are you creating jobs in places with high levels of unemployment
and underemployment?

To what extent are you creating jobs that are: decently paid;
satisfying with opportunity for progression; secure; local; not
overly long hours; environmentally sustainability

A skilled and well-educated Wales requires investments
which both create opportunities for individuals and
which develop a stronger workforce.

consider the development of a low carbon economy, a more
equal spread of economic activity across the country, and
how you might collaborate with other skills/education bodies
in Wales. .

Ecosystems which support social resilience and
community wellbeing, by offering opportunities for
people to enjoy nature, share outdoor space, and
strengthen social ties with their communities.

consider the importance of heritage and access to
recreation, and the restorative health effects of access to
nature, and the importance of cohesive communities.

Low carbon economy;

a more equal spread of economic activity across the
country;

how might you collaborate with other skills/education
bodies in Wales.

Importance of heritage and access to recreation;
restorative health effects of access to nature;
importance of cohesive communities.

How will your project provide training that will
develop skills and knowledge which the Welsh
labour market needs?

How will your project enhance or reduce access
to, and quality of, green and open spaces?

Will training delivered in your project change people's labour
market position in a lasting way, putting them in a stronger
position for other jobs when the project ends?

For example:

How will it embed lasting opportunities for skills development?
How will it widen accessibility of educational institutions?

How do the green/open spaces near your project currently help
communities come together and bond? How will your project build
on these benefits?

Ecosystems which support economic resilience protect
and enhance opportunities for people to work and
produce in a sustainable way.

consider the importance of building sustainable employment
T [T N T Lot T alTe AR ez ae in rural and coastal communities to tackle regional

e s e T VS e L 2| I inequalities and maintain viable productive non-urban
environment with healthy functioning communities where local people can prosper.

ecosystems that support social,

Building sustainable employment in rural and coastal
communities to tackle regional inequalities;

maintain viable productive non-urban communities
where local people can prosper.

How will this project build on and unlock
opportunities for green growth across Wales?

How will your project protect and enhance ecosystems which
support economic activity in Wales?

For example:

How will it impact opportunities for employment in wildlife and
conservation?

How will it impact livelihoods in rural communities e.g. quality of
coastlines and beaches, and agricultural resources e.g. soil,
pollination, regulated drainage?

economic and ecological resilience
and the capacity to adapt to
change (for example climate
change).

Ecosystems which support ecological resilience make
the Welsh environment more self-sustaining, and
enables Wales to adapt better to changes such as
climate change.

Consider the need to adapt to future environmental trends
and to use resources efficiently and proportionately.

Need to adapt to future environmental trends;
and to use resources efficiently and proportionately.

How will this project develop innovative solutions
for infrastructure provision which prioritises
environmental resilience?

How will this project integrate the 'precautionary
principle’ where environmental trends and impacts
on ecosystems are unknown?

How will your project enhance biodiversity?

How will your project directly impact ecosystems? For example:
Will it disturb important breeding grounds or animal migration
routes? Does it cut through any sites of designated environmental
significance?

How will your project add to the health, reach, and size of
population that ecosystems can support? e.g. protecting areas of
wildlife and investing in green infrastructure.

How will your project indirectly impact nearby ecosystems? For
example: Will it increase light pollution, damaging nearby owls'
ability to hunt?

Will replanting a forest elsewhere replace the services provided
by a more mature forest?

Will your project push ecosystems over a threshold beyond which
they are at risk of collapsing?

How will this project help Wales adapt to climate change, for
example the effects of increased flooding?




A healthier Wales understands and acts with an
understanding of the social determinants of mental and
physical poor health and wellbeing.

consider the unequal distribution of environmental
characteristics (e.g. noise and light from motorways) which
have negative psychosocial impacts, and the importance of
social connectedness and good work to mental health and

: . . . wellbeing.
Healthier: A society in which

people’s physical and mental well-

Unequal distribution of environmental characteristics
(e.g. noise and light from motorways) which have
negative psychosocial impacts;

and the importance of social connectedness and good
work to mental health and wellbeing.

How will this project improve aspects of
mental/physical health and wellbeing which are
tied to poverty?

How will your project impact air quality? How will these changes
be distributed between different areas, enhancing or reducing
health inequalities?

How will this project affect local mental health, both during the
construction phase and afterwards in its everyday functioning, for
example increasing stress and anxiety of people living locally?

being is

maximised and in which choices and
behaviours that benefit future

health are understood.

A healthier Wales needs to develop the infrastructure
that enables people to make healthier choices.
consider income inequalities and the need for low carbon
supply chains in food production. Also consider public
bodies who are working on reducing health inequalities.

A more equal Wales uses spending strategically to
reduce social, geographic and economic inequalities.

consider the important role of cultural diversity in creating
vibrant culture, the relationship between health and
inequality, and the value to a more productive Wales of
developing better skills and jobs in Wales.

More equal: A society that enables
people to fulfil their potential no
matter what

Income inequalities;

need for low carbon supply chains in food production;
public bodies who are working on reducing health
inequalities.

Role of cultural diversity in creating vibrant culture;
relationship between health and inequality;
need to develop skills and job opportunities in Wales.

their background or circumstances
(including their socio economic
background and circumstances).

A more equal Wales needs to tackle the accumulation of
wealth and power at the top which has failed to "trickle

Consider what affect a more equal dispersal of power and
wealth could have on Wales' options to tackle ecological
degradation and greenhouse gas emissions, and supporting
the development of a prosperous, geographically distributed
economy?.

Think also about the Ways of Working, Involvement

What affect a more equal dispersal of power and wealth
could have on Wales' options to tackle ecological
degradation and greenhouse gas emissions and
supporting the development of a prosperous,
geographically distributed economy?

Need to involve local people meaningfully

How will this project encourage or discourage
people to make healthier choices and behaviours?

How will this project provide leavers for reversing
long-term disadvantage, and support
disadvantaged groups in ways which are
sustainable in the long term?

How will this project be developed in such a way
that it does not lead to massive transfers of public
resources and assets to a small groups of
corporations?

How will this project protect and improve local access to quality
outdoor spaces for revival, restoration and exercise? For
example, adding new public pathways, existing cycling, walking
and riding trails, clean beaches and other opportunities for
outdoor swimming.

How will this project impact opportunities for active travel?

How will this project impact local supply chains to improve
affordable access to sustainable, healthy, fresh produce?

Is the project based in a place which is in priority need of
investment?

How have you identified and considered how the scheme will
bring opportunity to areas of high multiple deprivation in the
region?

Who benefits most from this project? For example, poorer people
stand to benefit more from public transport, affordable energy,
and public space and amenities.

Who is negatively impacted - directly or indirectly - by this
project? Are these impacts avoidable, and if not how will those
affected be compensated?

How will this project affect marginalised groups, for example
BAME (black, Asian, minority ethnic) people, women, LGBT
(lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender) people, and disabled
people?

How will this project ensure that decisions are made in a
democratic and egalitarian way, rather than allowing powerful
voices to dominate?

Consider, for example, where decisions are made and which
groups have access to decision-makers.

How will this project engage with social enterprises, co-operatives
and employee-owned businesses in its supply chains?




A more equal Wales need to address poverty, lack of
wealth and opportunities for those worst off in society.

Consider the need to improve education and employment
opportunities, tackling low pay, and aligning improvements
in material conditions with sustainable lifestyles.

Viable communities need to be able to provide basic
goods, services and jobs locally.

Consider how this can support low carbon lifestyles, decent
and local jobs, and attractive places to live.

Need to improve education and employment
opportunities;

tackling low pay;

and aligning improvements in material conditions with
sustainable lifestyles.

How this can support low carbon lifestyles, decent and
local jobs, and attractive places to live?

A well-connected Wales needs people to be able to
access local amenities which help communities connect
to themselves, and provide good links to other parts of
the country for recreation and internal tourism.

Consider the need for local jobs, local supply chains,
opportunities to develop local arts, music, culture etc.

Need for local jobs, local supply chains, opportunities to
develop local arts, music, culture etc.

Cohesive communities: Attractive,
It is important that people feel safe, and a sense of
belonging and support in their communities.

Consider how inequality impacts who can feel safe in public
space and under what circumstances.

How does inequality impact who can feel safe in public
space and under what circumstances?

Attractive communities in Wales should offer distinctive
neighbourhoods reflecting local character, where
people want to live and perceive as supporting a good
life.

Consider how outdoor space, heritage sites and cultural
activities can provide opportunities for learning and
recreation, vibrant and diverse local arts/music/culture.
Think also about the Ways of Working, Involvement.

How can outdoor space, heritage sites and cultural
activities can provide opportunities for learning and
recreation, vibrant and diverse local arts/music/culture?
How can local people be meaningfully consulted on their
desires and needs for their area?

How will your project support communities to be
more cohesive?

How will this project add additional resources to areas of
multiple deprivations, e.g. employment, public facilities to
built social capital, quality infrastructure such as schools and
healthcare?

How will this project impact improve access to and availability of
amenities locally?
How will this project provide long-term local jobs?

How will this project support local amenities and strengthen social
relationships?

For example, will it make local businesses and amenities more or
less viable?

How will improved transport links positively and negatively impact
diverse groups?

How will this project make public space feel safer and more
welcoming, particularly for children, older people, people with
disabilities, women and other groups to ensure diverse and lively
public space.

If this project is creating new public space - e.g. parks and
woodlands - how will local people be involved in its management
to build social ties and increase local cohesion?

How will this project create neighbourhoods that are pleasant to
live and work in? For example, infrastructure that makes it easier
to move around locally (e.g. cycleways); quality public space;
green infrastructure.

How will this project design these features in partnership with the
community to meet their needs and desires for the area/space?
This could include the design concept, the design of street
furniture, and involvement of local artists as well as residents.

How will this project mitigate and compensate for negative
impacts on the physical appeal of a place?




A culturally vibrant Wales is one where communities
and ways of life are sustainable, as part of a Wales
where cultural diversity also flourishes.

Consider the impacts of inequality on community viability,
the ability of diverse groups to participate in cultural life, and
other bodies (e.g. land use planning) who you can work with
to support this goal.

Vibrant culture: A society that
promotes and protects culture,
heritage and the Welsh
language, and which encourages
people i participate in the arts,

Impacts of inequality on community viability;

the ability of diverse groups to participate in cultural life
and;

other bodies (e.g. land use planning) who you can work
with to support this goal.

and spers and recreation

A culturally vibrant Wales requires protection and
enhancement of natural, cultural and historical heritage
sites.

Consider the employment provided by heritage sites -
particularly in rural areas - and the importance of equal
access to heritage.

Employment provided by heritage sites - particularly in
rural areas;
importance of equal access to heritage.

A culturally vibrant Wales requires arts, sports and
recreation being locally available, accessible, and
affordable.

Consider the importance of building social ties, flourishing
diversity, and prosperous localities which can support lots of
activities for a lively public life.

Globally responsible: A globally
responsible Wales. A nation which,
when doing anything to A globally responsible Wales should support global
improve the economic, social, wellbeing through sustainable consumption of
environmental and cultural well- resources, reduced greenhouse gas emissions, and
being contributing to global knowledge on sustainability good
of Wales, takes account of whether  [JJEtoil=R

doing such a thing may make a
positive contribution to global well-
being and the capacity to adapt to
change (for example climate
change).

for example, the need for low carbon economies and
lifestyles, and proportionate use of resources.

Importance of building social ties, flourishing diversity,
and prosperous localities which can support lots of
activities for a lively public life.

Need for low carbon economies and lifestyles;
and proportionate use of resources.

How will this project contribute to a culturally
vibrant Wales?

How will this project offer global leadership or
innovation in sustainable infrastructure?

How will this project contribute to a system where
resources used and greenhouse gas emissions
can be brought down?

How has this project so far, and how will it
continue to, build on best practice in sustainability
from around the world?

Consider the direct impacts of this project.

How will this project retain and enhance local cultural
opportunities, e.g. providing new venues e.g. art/music/dance
studios, sports facilities, arts festivals, museums/galleries, live
music venues, cinemas) and protecting established ones;
supporting local artists and traditional builders by involving them
in the design of the project and new bits of public space.

How will this project ensure that these opportunities are
accessible to all, e.g. affordable, public transport accessible, have
disability access.

Consider the indirect impacts this project might have on the
sustainability of local cultural diversity. This is about the
behaviours that your project may trigger. For example, might it
distort local housing markets by encouraging second home
ownership? Or impact the viability of local facilities venues
(consider those that cater to minority groups e.g. LBGT venues as
well as more mainstream venues), or marginalise Welsh
language? If so, what efforts will be taken to sustain vibrant
culture, for example protecting cultural venues and facilities?

How will this project affect nearby natural or other heritage sites?

What impact does your project have on the overall landscape of
the area?

How will this project increase accessibility of local heritage sites?

How will the project increase local access to arts, sports and
recreational activities?

Can the scheme make extra investments which offer more
opportunities that are affordable and accessible to local people?

Consider:

What Wales is bringing in from the rest of the world e.g.
responsible purchasing (sustainable and ethical sourcing); the
volume of resources that Wales is consuming (both in the
development of the project and behaviours that it will induce).
And what Wales is putting out into the world e.g. developing
sustainable technologies; providing a positive example of how
infrastructure projects can integrate wellbeing.

Overall, how is your project impacting the rest of the world -
ecological footprint, reducing greenhouse gas emissions, both in
its production and its use?




By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 3

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 73



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee

Agenca-ltem 4

Alun Davies AC/AM ( f
Gweinidog y Gymraeg a Dysgu Gydol Oes \/

Minister for Lifelong Learning and Welsh Language ,J/)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Ein cyf/Our ref: MA-L/ARD/0550/17 Welsh Government

Simon Thomas AM
Chair
Finance Committee

Lynne Neagle AM
Chair
Children, Young People and Education Committee

National Assembly for Wales
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

SeneddFinance@assembly.wales
SeneddCYPE@assembly.wales

8 September 2017
Dear Simon and Lynne,

In line with the commitment | made before the general principles debate for the
Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Bill (the Bill), | enclose a
copy of the Bill’s revised regulatory impact assessment (RIA).

Over the summer, a comprehensive quality assurance process has been
undertaken, including internal and external checks.

Internally, the focus has been on the accuracy of the calculations throughout the RIA
and accessibility for readers. Nothing of concern has been uncovered during this
review. Some textual changes have been made to aid clarity, for example, cross-
referencing figures in the text to relevant tables and footnoting the formula used to
arrive at a calculation. A £20 discrepancy was identified, which increases the
projected ongoing savings by £20.

However, no inaccuracies in the calculations have been identified.

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay 0300 0604400
Caerdydd « Cardiff Gohebiaeth.Alun.Davies@llyw.cymru
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Alun.Davies@gov.wales

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni
fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh._Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and
corresponding in Welsh will not lead to a delay &k dll-'@age


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Alun.Davies@llyw.cymru
mailto:Gohebiaeth.Alun.Davies@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Alun.Davies@gov.wales
mailto:Correspondence.Alun.Davies@gov.wales
mailto:SeneddFinance@assembly.wales
mailto:SeneddFinance@assembly.wales
mailto:SeneddCYPE@assembly.wales
mailto:SeneddCYPE@assembly.wales

The outcome of this internal review is positive and | hope serves to increase
confidence in the accuracy and reliability of the RIA.

| also commissioned an external peer review of the RIA, focusing on the
methodology used. This was undertaken by Dr Miguel Garcia-Sanchez, an
economist with significant expertise in cost-benefit analysis.

Dr Garcia-Sanchez assessed the technical approaches and assumptions used in the
RIA and analysed the robustness of the data used. A sample of figures was
subjected to a thorough interrogation and the overall method of the RIA was also
scrutinised. This complemented and built on the internal review.

| enclose a copy of the report | have received from Dr Garcia-Sanchez. Some of his
recommendations are specific to the Bill and some have a wider application — some
of the recommendations relate to the production of RIAs more generally and suggest
the Welsh Government should adopt a more economist-led model when producing
RIAs than is currently the case.

These broader recommendations about the model used to produce RIAs may be of
particular interest to the Finance Committee in the context of its current inquiry into
the financial estimates accompanying legislation.

Of the six recommendations Dr Garcia-Sanchez has made, there is one the Welsh
Government does not accept. This relates to calculating cash and net present value
estimates. To alter our approach as suggested would, in our view, run counter to the
guidance set out in HM Treasury’s Green Book.

We have amended the RIA in line with the two specific recommendations made by
Dr Garcia-Sanchez — the revised RIA now contains a clear list of unquantified costs
and explains why it covers a four-year time period.

The remaining recommendations relate to the production of RIAs more generally and
the Finance Committee may wish to reflect on them in the context of its inquiry. We
will ensure full consideration is given to these in the production of the RIAs which will
accompany the secondary legislation and ALN Code to be made under this Bill.
However, given the stage at which the Bill is at and the level of resource required to
action these recommendations retrospectively, | do not intend to take them forward
for this RIA.

In addition to the internal and external quality assurance process, my officials have
continued to work closely with SNAP Cymru to understand their concerns. The
latest engagement commenced following the CYPE Committee’s stage 1 evidence
sessions. As a result of this work, no further changes to the costs outlined in the RIA
have been made since my letter in May, but changes to the RIA narrative have been
made.

| have received assurances from my officials that SNAP Cymru are content with the

revisions to the RIA and | am grateful to Denise Inger and Caroline Rawson for their
engagement, which has enabled us to reach this mutually-agreeable position.

Pack Page 85



In May, | wrote to tell you that the ongoing savings were expected to be £3,675,240
over the four years. In the revised RIA, the figure is £3,675,260 — a difference of £20.
This is the result of a discrepancy identified through the internal review.

There is also a change to the overall cost of the Bill. In May | told you that |
expected it to be £8,279,250 over the four-year period. In the revised RIA the figure
is £7,853,200 — a reduction of £426,030. There are two elements to this.

First, an adjustment has been made to the Welsh Government implementation costs
outlined in the RIA to include only the transition costs directly relating to the Bill. In
its stage 1 report on the Bill, the Finance Committee recommended that there is
greater transparency in the RIA around the additional funding being made available
for the purposes of the Bill.

The adjustments to the RIA are part of our response to this recommendation. The
result is a reduction of £425,930. The revised RIA seeks to more clearly distinguish
between funding activity linked directly to implementation of the Bill and activity
relating to the wider transformation programme.

Secondly, a minor adjustment of £100 to the Special Educational Needs Tribunal for
Wales’ implementation costs has also been made. This is to reflect actual costs
rather than Welsh Government grant funding.

The cost of implementing this Bill will be met by the £20m funding package
announced earlier this year. | will write with an update about the implementation
funding but it is designed to go beyond simply funding the move from one statutory
system to another. It invests in skills and professional development to ensure we are
able to deliver the legislation, can change practice on the ground and improve
outcomes for children and young people.

Once implemented, the new system is expected to cost less to run than the current
SEN system. This is borne out by the experience of those local authorities already
operating key aspects of the new ALN system. Any savings in administration will be
reinvested in supporting children and young people.

| am copying this letter to all Assembly Members, further to my letter of 6 June,
ahead of the Bill’s financial resolution debate next month.

Yours sincerely

Noan

—

Alun Davies AC/AM
Gweinidog y Gymraeg a Dysgu Gydol Oes
Minister for Lifelong Learning and Welsh Language

Pack Pagé 86



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 88



Ag en d a Ite m 8 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 106



Ag en d a Ite m 9 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 134



	Agenda
	2 Paper(s) to note
	Minutes of the meeting held on 19 July 2017

	2.1 PTN1- Letter from the Chair of Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee to Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure - 20 July 2017
	2.2 PTN2 - Letter from the Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure to the Chair of Economy, Infrastructure and Skills Committee - 14 August 2017
	2.3 PTN3 - Letter from the Auditor General for Wales to Chair of Finance Committee - Expenditure on Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 - 3 August 2017
	2.4 PTN4 - Letter from Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government - Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Act 2017 Communities Scheme - 7 August 2017
	2.5 PTN5 - Letter from Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government - Welsh Government First Supplementary Budget 2017-18 - 21 July 2017
	170721 Finance Committee Follow up Action - Letter to Chair.pdf
	MA-P_MD_2607_17 Finance Committee Follow up Action - Note

	2.6 PTN6 - Letter from Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government - PPIW report - 23 August 2017
	PPIW Evidence Review Letter CSFLG to Simon Thomas - 23-08-2017.pdf
	PPIW report_participatory budgeting evidence review_ July 2017 FINAL

	2.7 PTN7 - Letter from the Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Local Government - Welsh Government First Supplementary Budget 2017-18 - 1 September 2017
	FIN(5)-21-17 PTN8 Letter from CFFLG re Supplementary Budget.pdf
	Written response

	2.8 PTN8 - Letter from the Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Children - Abolition of the Right to Buy and Associated Rights (Wales) Bill - 12 September 2017
	2.9 PTN9 - Letter from Suzy Davies AM, Commissioner - Remuneration Board Determination underspend - 14 September 2017
	2.10 PTN10 - Letter from the Future Generation Commissioner - Additional evidence on Cost of Legislation- 21 July 2017
	2017 07 21 Letter to Finance Committee from Future Generations [eng].pdf
	2017 07 21 Letter to Finance Committee from Future Generations [eng]Annex A
	2017 07 21 Letter to Finance Committee from Future Generations [eng]Annex B

	3 Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Bill Evidence Session: SNAP Cymru
	4 Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Bill: Ministerial Evidence Session
	Research Brief

	8 Oversight of the Wales Audit Office: Recruitment of the Auditor General for Wales
	9 Budget Scrutiny: Undertaking Budget Scrutiny and Financial Oversight; Developing Good Practice and Making a Difference



